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FORM 8-K
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Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of
the registrant under any of the following provisions (see General Instruction A.2. below):

Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)

Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12)

Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))

Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.13e-4(c))
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an emerging growth company as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act of 1933 (§230.405 of this chapter) or Rule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (§240.12b-2 of this
chapter).

Emerging growth company

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition
period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the
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Item 1.01 Entry Into a Material Definitive Agreement.

In connection with PEDEVCO Corp.’s (the “Company”, “PEDEVCO”, “we” and “us”) consolidation of accounting operations
to its new Houston, Texas headquarters, on December 31, 2018, the Company and the Company’s Chief Financial
Officer, Mr. Gregory Overholtzer, entered into a Separation and General Release Agreement (the “Separation
Agreement”) pursuant to which, effective December 31, 2018 (the “Separation Date”), Mr. Overholtzer and the Company
mutually agreed to discontinue Mr. Overholtzer’s employment with the Company and Mr. Overholtzer resigned from

all positions held with the Company and its subsidiaries. Mr. Overholtzer will continue to work with the Company in a
transitional consulting capacity until April 7, 2019 (the “Transition Period”) pursuant to a Consulting Agreement entered
into by and between the Company and Mr. Overholtzer on January 1, 2019 (the “Consulting Agreement”). Pursuant to
the Consulting Agreement, Mr. Overholtzer agreed to provide accounting and financial reporting services and support

to the Company for an average of up to six (6) hours per week during the Transition Period in exchange for cash
compensation of $15,000 per month and continued COBRA insurance coverage for Mr. Overholtzer and his

dependents paid for by the Company during the Transition Period. Upon the successful conclusion of the Transition
Period, (i) the Company agreed to accelerate the vesting of an aggregate of 20,000 shares of restricted common stock
previously issued to Mr. Overholtzer by the Company (the “Unvested Shares”), which would have otherwise vested
ratably over three years through December 12, 2021, subject to Mr. Overholtzer’s continued service to the Company,
and which would have otherwise been forfeited by Mr. Overholtzer upon his separation from the Company prior to

such vesting date, (ii) the Company agreed to accelerate the vesting of options to purchase an aggregate of 30,000

shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.3088 per share previously issued to Mr. Overholtzer
by the Company (the “Unvested Options”), which would have otherwise vested in full on June 28, 2019, subject to Mr.
Overholtzer’s continued service to the Company, and which would have otherwise been forfeited by Mr. Overholtzer
upon his separation from the Company prior to such vesting date, and (iii) the Company agreed to extend the exercise
period for all of Mr. Overholtzer’s options for a period of three (3) years following the Separation Date (regardless of
their original terms). In addition, pursuant to the Separation Agreement, Mr. Overholtzer agreed to fully-release the
Company from all claims in exchange for the Company agreeing to pay a lump sum cash payment of $15,833.33 to

Mr. Overholtzer following the effectiveness of the Separation Agreement.

The foregoing descriptions of the Separation Agreement and Consulting Agreement do not purport to be complete and
are qualified in their entirety by reference to the Separation Agreement and Consulting Agreement, copies of which
are attached as Exhibit 10.1 and Exhibit 10.2, respectively, to this Current Report on Form 8-K and incorporated
herein by reference.

Item 2.03 Creation of a Direct Financial Obligation or an Obligation under an Off-Balance Sheet Arrangement of a
Registrant.

The disclosures in Item 1.01 above with respect to the Separation Agreement and Consulting Agreement and the
amounts due in connection therewith are incorporated in this Item 2.03 by reference.

Item 5.02 Departure of Directors or Certain Officers; Election of Directors; Appointment of Certain Officers;
Compensatory Arrangements of Certain Officers.

See the discussions under Item 1.01 above with respect to the resignation of Mr. Overholtzer as an employee and
executive officer (Chief Financial Officer) of the Company and its subsidiaries, the Separation Agreement and the
Consulting Agreement, which are incorporated in this Item 5.02 by reference.
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Item 9.01 Financial Statements and Exhibits.
(a) Exhibits.

Exhibit Description
No.
10.1% Separation and General Release Agreement, dated December 31, 2018, between Pacific Energy Development
——  Corp. and Gregory Overholtzer

10.2% Consulting Agreement, dated January 1, 2019, between Gregory Overholtzer and Pacific Energy
— Development Corp.

* Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
PEDEVCO CORP.
Date: January 4,2019 By: /s/ Simon G. Kukes

Simon G. Kukes
Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Description
No.
10.1% Separation and General Release Agreement, dated December 31, 2018, between Pacific Energy Development
——  Corp. and Gregory Overholtzer

10.2% Consulting Agreement, dated January 1, 2019, between Gregory Overholtzer and Pacific Energy
— Development Corp.

* Filed herewith.
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we issued an aggregate of 280,000 shares of our common stock to two consultants in settlement of $477,816 of
contractual payments.

In January 2004, the Company sold an aggregate of 1,897,143 shares of its common stock to eight individuals for total
proceeds to the Company of $656,221.

In February 2004, the Company sold an aggregate of 616,452 shares of its common stock to four individuals for total
proceeds to the Company of $272,614.

In March 2004, the Company sold an aggregate of 1,539,262 shares of its common stock to five individuals for total
proceeds to the Company of $810,143.

On March 24, 2004, we issued 5,500,000 shares of common stock to our then Chief Executive Officer, Ms. Patricia
McPeak, in exchange for services rendered.

In April 2004, the Company sold an aggregate of 1,347,299 shares of its common stock to four individuals for total
proceeds to the Company of $514,973.

In May 2004, the Company sold an aggregate of 125,000 shares of its common stock to two individuals for total
proceeds to the Company of $12,475.

In September 2004, the Company sold an aggregate of 25,000 shares of its common stock to one individual for total
proceeds to the Company of $4,500.

On September 8, 2004, the Company and Langley Park Investments PLC (“Langley”) signed a Stock Purchase
Agreement under which the Company agreed to sell 7,000,000 shares of its common stock to Langley. The transaction
will close at the time that Langley’s shares are trading on the London Stock Exchange for anticipated consideration to
NutraCea (i) immediately following the closing of approximately $1,190,000 in Langley stock, and (ii) additional
consideration of that number of Langley shares which, as of the closing, will have a value of approximately
$1,190,000.

In December 2004, the Company sold an aggregate of 25,000 shares of its common stock to one individual for total
proceeds to the Company of $5,000. There were no underwriting discounts or commissions associated with this sale.

In December 2004, the Company issued warrants to purchase an aggregate of 2,400,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock in connection with a Promissory Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement entered into with three
investors for an aggregate purchase amount of $2,400,000. A commission of $242,846 as paid to Sandgrain Securities
upon consummation of the financing and a finder’s fee of $25,000 was paid.

22
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During 2004, we issued 3,048,315 shares of our common stock to 15 consultants in lieu of contractual payments in the
amount of $2,192,013 pursuant to consulting contracts.

During 2004, we issued warrants to purchase 9,598,493 shares of our common stock valued at $7,761,516 to 14
consultants pursuant to consulting agreements. The warrants are exercisable at prices between $.01 and $5.00 per
share and expire at varying times between six months and five years from the date of issuance.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2005, NutraCea issued 29,786 shares of its common stock valued at $15,000 to a
web design consultant in respect of unpaid fees.

During the year ended December 31, 2005 NutraCea:
(1) issued 70,000 shares of common stock to two officers and directors, valued at $30,100;

(2)issued a total of 30,000 shares of common stock to two consultants under the Patent Incentive Plan, valued at
$12,600;

(3)issued 97,000 shares of common stock, valued at $97,655, to Faraday, which was the last required payment to
Faraday under the Settlement Agreement dated December 10, 2003; and

4 issued 33,000 shares of common stock to three consultants, valued at $21,300.

In 2005, NutraCea issued 1,222,222 and 166,667 shares of its common stock to repurchase technology and marketing
rights valued at $550,000 and $75,000, to a customer and the limited liability company they formed.

In 2005, NutraCea issued 359,183 shares of common stock to a consulting company for patent and license analysis.
224,489 shares, valued at $110,000, vested upon signing of the agreement while the balance vested upon certain
milestones achieved and were valued at $61,959.

In 2005, NutraCea issued options to purchase 360,000 shares of its common stock to a technology firm for assistance
in developing an internet marketing system for NutraCea. The options have an exercise price of $0.60 per share,
exercisable over 21 months, and expire in five years. The contract was terminated on August 31, 2005 with 105,000
option shares vested, valued at $47,851.

On August 24, 2005, NutraCea entered into a Private Label Supply Agreement and Strategic Alliance (“Supply
Agreement”). In connection with the Supply Agreement and in return for an agreement to purchase a minimum of
$500,000 per quarter in NutraCea products, NutraCea issued to ITV Global, Inc. an option to acquire up to 250,000
shares of the Company’s common stock, contingent upon quarterly payment performances.

In 2005, we issued 700,000 options and warrants to purchase common stock to seven consultants, valued at $301,598.

The following issuances of stock were made without any public solicitation to holders of options, warrants. Each
holder of an option or warrant represented to us that the securities were being acquired for investment purposes only
and not with an intention to resell or distribute such securities. The individuals or entities had access to information
about our business and financial condition and was deemed capable of protecting their own interests. As such, the
stock was issued pursuant to the private placement exemption provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933.
These are deemed to be “restricted securities” as defined in Rule 144 under the 1933 Act and the stock certificates bear a
legend limiting the resale thereof.
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During 2004, we issued an aggregate of 509,323 shares of our common stock upon exercise of outstanding options
and warrants.
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During 2005, we issued 531,000 shares of our common stock upon exercise of outstanding options and warrants for
cash, and 66,666 common shares for the cashless exercise of 100,000 options.

In 2005, we issued 2,200,000 options to 3 employees, valued at $130,000, exercisable between $.30 and $.46 per
share, expiring in ten years;

On October 4, 2005, NutraCea completed a private placement of its securities to certain investors for aggregate gross
proceeds of approximately $7,850,000. NutraCea issued an aggregate of 7,850 shares of Series B Convertible
Preferred Stock at a price of $1,000 per share, which may be converted to shares of NutraCea common stock at a
conversion rate of 2,000 shares of commons stock for each Preferred Share. Additionally, NutraCea issued warrants to
purchase an aggregate of 7,850,000 share of NutraCea common stock at an exercise price of $0.70 per share. The
placement agent for the transaction was paid a commission consisting of $549,500 and warrants to purchases up to an
aggregate of 1,099,000 shares of NutraCea common stock at an exercise price of $0.50 per share.

From January 1, 2006 to March 3, 2006, we issued 42,576 shares of our common stock upon the cashless exercise of
outstanding options and warrants.

In January and February 2006, we issued 410,000 options and warrants to purchase common stock to four consultants
and one director, valued at $168,394.

In February of 2006, we issued 530,000 options to purchase common stock to two employees valued at $10,000.

The following issuances of stock, warrants, and other equity securities were exchanged by us with our existing
security holders exclusively in transactions in which no commission or other remuneration was paid or given directly
or indirectly to any person. As such, the issuance of the following securities was exempt from registration under
Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

During 2004, the Company issued 5,759 shares of common stock in payment of preferred dividends in the amount of
$5,986.

During 2004, we issued an aggregate of 540,000 shares of our common stock pursuant to the conversion provisions of
630,000 shares of our Series A Preferred Stock.

In February and March of 2006, six preferred shareholders converted 600 shares of preferred stock into 1,200,000
shares of common stock.

The following issuances of stock and assumption of options and warrants were made pursuant to an exemption
provided by Section 3(a)(10) of the Securities Act of 1933 after a fairness hearing before the California Department of
Corporations.

On October 4, 2005, NutraCea completed its merger with The RiceX Company. In connection with the merger,
NutraCea issued 28,272,064 shares of its common stock to holders of RiceX common stock. In addition, NutraCea
assumed each outstanding option and warrant to purchase RiceX common stock and converted those options and
warrants into options and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 11,810,507 shares of NutraCea common stock.

RECENT SALES OF REGISTERED SECURITIES

In 2004, the Company issued 719,635 shares of common stock to six consultants, valued at $353,800.
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In 2005, NutraCea issued 93,948 shares of common stock to one consultant, valued at $73,000.
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In the first quarter of 2006, NutraCea issued 15,967 shares of common stock to the same consultant for services
rendered, valued at $15,000.

PURCHASE OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY COMPANY

Maximum Number
Total Number of (or Approximate
Total Number of Average Price Paid Shares (or Units) Dollar Value) of
Period Shares (or Units) . Purchased as Part of Shares (or Units)
Purchased per Share (or Unit) Publicly Announced that May Yet be
Plans or Programs | Purchased Under the
Plans or Programs
January 1, 2005 -
December 31, 2005 - WO 0 -

Item 6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION

The following is a summary discussion of our consolidated financial condition as of December 31, 2005 and the
results of operations for quarters ended December 31, 2005 and 2004. The quarter presentation is made because of the
fourth quarter 2005 significant event, merger with The RiceX Company, or RiceX, and its effect on our quarter
operating results.

Also following is a detailed discussion of our consolidated financial condition as of December 31, 2005 and the results
of operations for fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, which should be read in conjunction with, and is
qualified in its entirety by, the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this report.
The consolidated financial statements see Part II - Item 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS represents annual results for
NutraCea and three months of operations for RiceX which was acquired by NutraCea on October 4, 2005.

Merger with The RiceX Company

At special meetings of shareholders held on September 28, 2005 the shareholders of NutraCea and RiceX approved
various matters relating to the proposed merger between the two companies.

On October 4, 2005, NutraCea merged with RiceX, with RiceX surviving the Merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of
NutraCea. Each share of RiceX common stock outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger was
converted into the right to receive 0.76799 shares of NutraCea’s common stock.

The stockholders of RiceX received 28,272,064 shares of NutraCea common stock in exchange for 100% of the shares
of RiceX common stock, and NutraCea assumed the outstanding options and warrants to purchase 11,810,507 shares
of RiceX common stock. No dissenters’ rights were paid.

Quarterly Summary

The follow chart summarizes selected financial information for fourth quarter ending December 31, 2005 and 2004 for
our combined Company.

Selected Financial Summary
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Quarter Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004
(in thousands except share data)

Fourth Fourth

Quarter Quarter
Consolidated Operating Results 2005 2004
Revenue $ 4504 $ 561
Gross margin 2,331 358
Percent of revenue 52% 64%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,952 2,594
EBITDA* 379 (2,236)
Depreciation and amortization 263 14
Other income (expense) $ (269) 27
Net income (loss) (153) (2,277)
Net income (loss) per share $ 0.00 ($0.11)
Weighted average common shares outstanding at quarter end quarter end
December 31, 38,615,344 19,905,965

*EBITDA is not a measurement of financial performance under accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. For a quantitative reconciliation of the differences between EBITDA and net income (loss), as net
income (loss) is calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, see the “EBITDA
Reconciliation” table below.

Gross revenues for the fourth quarter 2005 were $4,504,000 compared to gross revenues of $561,000 for the fourth
quarter of 2004, an increase of over 700%. Our improved revenues and financial performance on a quarterly
comparative basis have primarily resulted from the merger with RiceX and the successful launch of our products into
the infomercial market segment during quarter ended December 31, 2005. We had a net loss of $153,000 for the
fourth quarter of 2005, compared to a net loss of $2,277,000 for the same period in 2004. In addition, we report
positive earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization EBITDA of $379,000 in the fourth quarter of
2005 compared to a negative EBITDA of $2,236,000 in the fourth quarter of 2004, an improvement of $2,615,000.
The net loss for the fourth quarter of 2005 includes charges associated with the merger totaling in excess of $740,000.

25
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EBITDA Reconciliation

EBITDA represents net income (loss) before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. EBITDA is not a
measurement of financial performance under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The
following table presents EBITDA amounts for the three_month periods_ended December 31, 2004 and 2005. The table
also sets forth for these periods a quantitative reconciliation of the differences between EBITDA and net loss, as net
loss is calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles:

Three Month Period ended December 31,

2005 2004
Net loss $ (153,000) $ (2,277,000)
Add back non-EBITDA items included in net loss
Depreciation and amortization 263,000 14,000
Interest expense, net of interest income 269,000 27,000
EBITDA $ 379,000 $ (2,236,000)

We have included data with respect to EBITDA because we evaluate and project the performance of our Company’s

business using several measures, including EBITDA. Management considers EBITDA to be an important

supplemental indication of our operating performance because this measure eliminates some recurring non-cash and

non-recurring items. Management believes that consideration of EBITDA should be supplemental, because EBITDA

has limitations as an analytical measure. These limitations include the following:

-EBITDA does not reflect our Company’s cash expenditures, or our future requirements for capital expenditures, or
contractual commitments;

-EBITDA does not reflect the interest expense, or cash requirements necessary to service interest or principle
payments;

-although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized will often
have to be replaced in the future, an EBITDA does not reflect any cash requirements for such replacements; and

-EBITDA does not reflect the effects of earnings or charges resulting from matters the Company’s management
considers not to be indicative of our ongoing operations.

The Company’s management compensates for these limitations by relying primarily on its results under generally

accepted accounting principles to evaluate our operating performance and by considering independently the economic

effects of the foregoing items that are not reflected in the EBITDA. EBITDA should not be considered as an

alternative to net income (loss), as calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, as a

measure of operating performance, nor should it be considered as an alternative to cash flows, as calculated in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, as a measure of liquidity.

Annual Summary

Due to the acquisition of The RiceX Company on October 4, 2005, the following represents annual results for
NutraCea and three months of operations for RiceX for 2005 information..

Selected Financial Summary
Years End December 31, 2005 and 2004
(in thousands except share data)

Consolidated Operating Results 2005 2004
Revenue $ 5,564 $ 1,224
Gross margin 2,686 624
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Percent of revenue

Research and development expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Share-based compensation

Professional and investor relations fees
Other income (expense)

Net (loss) income

(Loss) earnings per share

Weighted average number of shares outstanding

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Cash

Total assets

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue, advance payments
Shareholders’ equity

Number of common shares outstanding at December 31,
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48%
191
2,993
1,511
991
(878)
$ (3,872)
($0.10)

38,615,344

2005

$ 3,491 §$

48,558

1,255

5

$ 38,894
67,102,079

51%
127
1,928
20,998
1,122
32
(23,583)
($1.18)

19,905,965

2004
1,928
3,338
2,171

1,167
36,130,544
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We have developed a strategic and financial business plan to meet our ongoing liquidity needs for the year ended
December 31, 2005 and thereafter. These current year changes in strategic plans related to marketing efforts,
production efficiencies, spending controls and our recent acquisition of RiceX are expected to facilitate increased
liquidity. For a complete understanding of these activities, this Management’s Discussion and Analysis should be read
in conjunction with Part I - Item 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS and Part II - Item 7. FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS of this Annual Report on Form 10-KSB.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND DECEMBER 31, 2004

Due to the recent merger of NutraCea with RiceX which occurred in the fourth quarter of 2005, the results of
operations discussed below may not be comparable to future operations of the combined entity.

Consolidated revenues for the year ended December 31, 2005 were $5,564,000, an increase of $4,340,000, or 355%
on a comparative basis to the year ended December 31, 2004. The 355% increase was primarily a result of new sales
in the infomercial market of $3,012,000 which began in September 2005. We had sales in the nutraceutical equine
market of $1,071,000, sales in other nutraceutical markets of $323,000, and technology income of $100,000 in 2005.
Also contributing to our revenue increase was fourth quarter sales included in the merger with The RiceX Company of
approximately $1,058,000.

Cost of goods sold increased from $600,000 in 2004 to $2,878,000 in 2005 due primarily to the significant increase in
product sold in 2005. Gross margins increased $2,062,000 to $2,686,000 in 2005, from $624,000 in 2004. This

330% increase was due to new sales in the infomercial market, increased sales in the equine market and nutraceutical
markets, and the addition of gross margins related to the merger of The RiceX Company in the fourth quarter of 2005.

Research and Development (R&D) expenses increased $64,000 in 2005 to $191,000 due to increased product
development costs.

Sales, General and Administrative (SG&A) expenses increased $1,059,000 from $1,928,000 in 2004 to $2,993,000 in
2005. The increase was mostly due to added employee related, travel, office, commission, and other general operating
expenses resulting from the merger with RiceX.

Share-based compensation decreased $19,487,000 from $20,998,000 in 2004 to $1,511,000 in 2005. These non-cash
charges are related to issuances of common stock and common stock warrants and options awarded in 2005 compared
to 2004. During 2004, these non-cash expenses relating to the issuance of 5.5 million restricted shares of common
stock to the Company’s former Chief Executive Officer for services rendered and repayment of debt; the value of
restricted shares and shares covered by the Company’s S-8 registration statement issued to officers, directors and
consultants for services; and the value of options and warrants issued to various employees and consultants. The
increased issuance of restricted stock, options and warrants during 2004 was deemed necessary by management to
retain and compensate officers, directors, consultants and employees while conserving cash assets that would
otherwise have been expended for these purposes.

Professional and investor relations fees decreased $131,000 from $1,122,000 in 2004 to $984,000 in 2005. In 2005,
professional expenses primarily legal expenses, were associated with non recurring charges of $612,000 incurred by
RiceX. Also in 2005, we incurred investor relations costs of $262,000 associated with an investor relations firm and
professional fees associated with quarterly and annual SEC filing requirements. In 2004, we incurred significantly
higher professional fees due to non cash expenses for consultants for services.

Interest expense increased by $868,000 to $896,000 in 2005 due to interest and discount related to a note payable of
$2,400,000 at 7% interest compounded quarterly. On October 4, 2005, principle of $2,400,000 and $137,000 interest
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was paid in full. A non-cash discount in the amount of $759,000 was amortized in 2005.

We had a net loss of $3,872,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005, or $0.10 loss per share, compared to a net loss
of $23,583,000 for 2004, or $1.18 loss per share. The net loss reduction of $19,711,000 was primarily due to the
reduction of non-cash stock options and warrants issued, increased total revenues, and new business development in
the infomercial market. There were positive trends in our domestic animal product lines primarily sold to the equine
market and our domestic functional foods and nutraceutical product lines.
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The provision of income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 consists of the $2,226 for minimum
state income taxes.

Deferred taxes arise from temporary differences in the recognition of certain expenses for tax and financial statement
purposes. At December 31, 2005, management determined that realization of these benefits is not assured and has
provided a valuation allowance for the entire amount of such benefits. At December 31, 2005, net operating loss
carryforwards were approximately $23,000,000for federal tax purposes that expire at various dates from 2011 through
2025 and $19,700,000 for state tax purposes that expire in 2010 through 2015.

Utilization of net operating loss carryforwards may be subject to substantial annual limitations due to the “change in
ownership” provisions of the Internal Revenue Code and similar state regulations. The annual limitation may result in
expiration of net operating loss carryforwards before utilization.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We have incurred significant operating losses since our inception, and, as of December 31, 2005 we had an
accumulated deficit of $48,800,000. We used approximately $3,378,000 of cash to fund operations during the twelve
months ended December 31, 2005 leaving a cash balance of $3,491,000 at December 31, 2005 and working capital of
$5,566,000.

To date, we have funded our operations, in addition to sales revenues, through a combination of short-term debt and
the issuance of common and preferred stock. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2005, we have issued a
total of 30,972,000 shares of common stock of which 1,975,000 shares valued at $934,000 were issued as
compensation to officers and consultants in lieu of cash. The bulk of the 2005 issuance was 28,272,000 shares of
common stock issued to RiceX shareholders resulting from the merger on October 4, 2005.

On October 4, 2005, certain investors purchased an aggregate of 7,850 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
at a price of $1,000 per share pursuant to the Purchase Agreement. This private placement of securities generated
aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $7,850,000 (approximately $7,300,000 million after offering expenses).
The preferred shares can be converted to shares of common stock at a conversion rate of 2,000 shares of common
stock for each preferred share issued in the transaction. Additionally, pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the
investors were issued warrants to purchase an aggregate 7,850,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of
$0.70 per share. The warrants have a term of five years and are immediately exercisable. An advisor for the financing
received a customary fee based on aggregate gross proceeds received from the investors and a warrant to purchase
1,099,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price per share of $0.50 per share. This sale of securities will provide
additional operating capital to be utilized over at least the next 12 months.

During December 2004, we borrowed $2,400,000 in notes payable to help finance future operations. The notes were
for a one year term, bear interest at 7% interest compounded quarterly and were secured by all of our assets. The
holders were issued warrants to purchase a total of 2,400,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $0.30
per share. The warrants are immediately exercisable and expire in seven years from the date of issuance. Debt
discount expense of $786,370 was recorded in connection with issuance of these warrants and is being amortized over
the life of the notes payable. These notes were paid off on October 4, 2005. Subsequent to the completion of the
October 4, 2005 private placement transaction mentioned above, we retired the $2,400,000 notes payable borrowed in
December 2004.

In addition to the capital raised on October 4, 2005, we believe that we may need to raise additional capital to continue
to develop, promote and conduct our operations. Such additional capital may be raised through public or private

financing as well as borrowing from other sources.
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For the year ended December 31, 2005, our cash balance increased by $1,562,000, compared to the same period last
year. Our cash balance at December 31, 2005 was $3,491,000. Our cash position has not required cash from financing
activities in order to fund operations since retiring all of our long term debt in October 2005. Management believes
our cash reserve is adequate to meet future operating requirements.
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Domestic Initiatives

We began an initiative to expand our Dillon, Montana plant to increase production capacity to meet the growing
market demand for our products made from stabilized Rice Bran derivatives. During most of the fourth quarter of
2005, since the NutraCea/RiceX merger closing on October 4, 2005, we have been consistently utilizing at or close to
100% of the manufacturing capacity of our Dillon, Montana facility. This represents an increase of daily average
production during the period following the closing of the merger by more than 400% when compared to the average
daily production capacity during the 9 months prior to the merger. The Dillon facility expansion is anticipated to be
completed during the 2nd quarter of 2006, and should result in more than a 50% increase in production capability of
our Stabilized Rice Bran derivative products. Building and key equipment contracts have been awarded with
construction now underway. We have existing financial liquidity from cash on hand and current cash flow to complete
the expansion. Strong market interest in our proprietary stabilized Rice Bran derivatives has prompted the need for
increased manufacturing capability and is consistent with our goal of meeting growing customer demands and a new
awareness of our products' value. This increase in manufacturing capacity is the most efficient and economical means
of boosting capacity as quickly as possible to meet the increasing demands of the marketplace.

We have entered into a raw rice bran supply agreement with Louisiana Rice Mill LLC, or LRM. The agreement triples
our capacity to produce our proprietary Stabilized Rice Bran production in the United States. In addition, we
announced the construction of our stabilization facility at the LRM rice milling facility in Mermentau, Louisiana.
Under the terms of the agreement, LRM will supply raw rice bran from its rice milling operations to NutraCea. The
supply agreement is intended to triple our current supply of raw bran, which will be processed through our exclusive
proprietary stabilization system to produce stabilized rice bran and other value added-products for both the human and
animal nutrition markets. The stabilization process will be implemented at LRM with the construction of a facility,
which retrofits our proprietary engineering process to the equipment at LRM. We have the ability to fund this project
with existing cash resources. The new facility is expected to be completed prior to the end of the 3rd quarter of this
year.

International Initiatives

On September 13, 2005, we entered into an agreement with a Dominican Republic rice mill whereby the two
companies will form a joint venture. The agreement allows us the option to install equipment to annually produce at
least 5,000 metric tons of stabilized rice bran in the Dominican Republic, or in the alternative produce the product in
the United States and ship the raw ingredients to the Dominican Republic and package it in final form there. The joint
venture will be equally owned by the two companies and will commercially sell stabilized rice bran products through
retail and government in the Dominican Republic and Haiti.

On October 25, 2005, we signed an agreement with an industrial consortium in Colombia to study the creation of a
joint entity to share equally in the profits generated from sales of our products in the Colombian market. The
agreement includes provisions for the Colombian consortium to provide 50% of all the financing necessary to
construct the plants (with us providing the remaining 50% of the financing) and to be responsible for providing all the
necessary land and space required for the implementation of the plants to be constructed. The Colombian consortium
would be responsible for providing all of the sales and distribution as part of its contribution to the joint entity. We
continue efforts to execute a formal definitive agreement.

On October 28, 2005, we agreed with an Ecuadorian company to study arriving at a definitive agreement for a

working arrangement that will allow the Ecuadorian company the right to utilize our proprietary ingredients and
value-added processing in their multi-faceted food business, which includes animal feed, poultry and cereals.
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In November 2005, NutraCea signed a Supply and Distribution Agreement with T. Geddes Grant, a Jamaican
Corporation. The agreement requires us to deliver a customized formulated and fortified RiSolubles mix to T. Geddes
Grant. The agreement requires that T. Geddes Grant purchase a minimum of $4,500,000 of the custom formulation per
year for a term of two years. Under the terms of the agreement, T. Geddes Grant is also appointed as exclusive
distributor for the territory of Jamaica, Barbados and Trinidad. T. Geddes Grant is obligated to obtain all necessary
regulatory approvals for marketing NutraCea products in the Territory and use its best efforts to develop commercial
sales in the Territory.
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There can be no assurance that these international initiatives will be achieved in part or whole, however management
continues its efforts to formalize it relationship within these countries to further its business activities.

While we believe we can increase our production capacity to meet sales demand, significant additional capital could
be required to meet such expansion requirements. We have sufficient cash reserves to meet all anticipated short-term
operating requirements. However, the timing and amount of any long-term capital requirements cannot be predicted
at this time.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of our significant accounting policies is included in Note 2, Part II - Item 7, FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS. We believe the application of these accounting policies on a consistent basis enables us to provide
timely and reliable financial information about our earnings results, financial condition and cash flows.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions regarding uncertainties that affect the reported amounts
presented and disclosed in the financial statements. Our management reviews these estimates and assumptions based
on historical experience, changes in business conditions and other relevant factors that they believe to be reasonable
under the circumstances. In any given reporting period, actual results could differ from the estimates and assumptions
used in preparing our financial statements.

Critical accounting policies are those that may have a material impact on our financial statements and also require
management to exercise significant judgment due to a high degree of uncertainty at the time the estimate is made. Our
management has discussed the development and selection of our accounting policies, related accounting estimates and
the disclosures set forth below with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors. We believe our critical
accounting policies include those addressing revenue recognition, allowance for doubtful accounts, and inventories.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues from product sales are recognized when products are shipped and when the risk of loss has transferred to the
buyer. Deposits are deferred until either the product has shipped or conditions relating to the sale have been
substantially performed.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We continuously monitor collections from our customers and maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon
our historical experience and any specific customer collection issues that we have identified. While such credit losses
have historically not exceeded our expectations and the provisions established, there is a risk that credit losses in the
future will exceed those that have occurred in the past, in which case our operating results would be adversely
affected.

Valuation of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets, consisting primarily of property and equipment, patents and trademarks, and goodwill, comprise a
significant portion of our total assets. Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying values may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets is measured by a
comparison of the carrying value of an asset to the future net cash flows expected to be generated by those assets. The
cash flow projections are based on historical experience, management’s view of growth rates within the industry, and
the anticipated future economic environment.

26



Edgar Filing: PEDEVCO CORP - Form 8-K

Factors we consider important that could trigger a review for impairment include the following:
(a) significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results,
(b) significant changes in the manner of its use of the acquired assets or the strategy of its overall business, and
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(c) significant negative industry or economic trends.
When we determine that the carrying value of patents and trademarks, long-lived assets and related goodwill and
enterprise-level goodwill may not be recoverable based upon the existence of one or more of the above indicators of
impairment, it measures any impairment based on a projected discounted cash flow method using a discount rate
determined by its management to be commensurate with the risk inherent in its current business model.
Marketable Securities
Marketable securities are marked to market at each period end. Any unrealized gains and losses on the marketable
securities are excluded from operating results and are recorded as a component of other comprehensive income (loss).
If declines in value are deemed other than temporary, losses are reflected in Net income (loss).
Inventory
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market and consists of nutraceutical products. While we
have an inventory of these products, any significant prolonged shortage of these ingredients or of the supplies used to
enhance these ingredients could materially adversely affect the our results of operations.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. We provide for depreciation using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives as follows:

Furniture and equipment 5-7 years
Automobile 5 years
Software 3 years
Leasehold Improvements 2.4-7 years
Property and equipment 7-10 years

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred while renewals and betterments are
capitalized. Gains or losses on the sale of property and equipment are reflected in the statements of operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

For certain of our financial instruments, including cash, accounts receivable, inventory, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued salaries and benefits, deferred compensation, accrued expenses, customer deposits, due to related

party, notes payable - related party and note payable, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to their short
maturities.

Stock-Based Compensation

Compensation is recorded for stock-based compensation grants based on the excess of the estimated fair value of the
common stock on the measurement date over the exercise price. Additionally, for stock-based compensation grants to
consultants, we recognize as compensation expense the fair value of such grants as calculated pursuant to SFAS No.
123, recognized over the related service period. SFAS No. 148 requires companies to disclose pro forma results of the
estimated effect on net income and earnings per share to reflect application of the fair value recognition provision of
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SFAS No. 123.
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
None
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
NutraCea and subsidiaries
El Dorado Hills, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of NutraCea as of December 31, 2005, and the related
statements of operations, comprehensive loss, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the two years
then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of NutraCea’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of NutraCea as of December 31, 2005, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of
the two years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

MALONE & BAILEY, PC
www.malone-bailey.com
Houston, Texas

March 15, 2006

F-1
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NUTRACEA AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

The financial statements and accompanying notes comprise twelve months of operations for NutraCea and three
months of operations for the recently-acquired subsidiary, The RiceX Company, or RiceX.

NUTRACEA AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2005

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash

Marketable securities
Accounts receivable
Inventory

Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

©& &

Restricted marketable securities
Property and equipment, net
Patents and trademarks, net
Goodwill

Total assets $

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $
Accrued expenses

Due to related parties

Note payable, current portion

Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Long term liabilities
Note payable, net of current portion
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Convertible, series B preferred stock, no par value,
$1000 stated value 20,000,000 shares authorized 7,850
shares issued and outstanding

Shareholders' equity

3,490,556
144,947
2,514,961
594,614
82,400
6,827,478

144,947
5,493,036
2,417,815

32,581,007

47,464,283

998,706
248,282
2,897
6,069
5,147
1,261,101

8,906

1,270,007

7,300,500

89,783,817
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Common stock, no par value 200,000,000 shares
authorized 67,102,079 shares issued and outstanding

Accumulated deficit (48,799,935)
Accumulated other comprehensive income, unrealized

loss on marketable securities (2,090,106)
Total shareholders' equity 38,893,776
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 47,464,283

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
F-2
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NUTEACEA AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Operations

NUTRACEA AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the years ended
December 31,

2005 2004

Revenues
Net product sales 5,564,151 1,009,729
Licensing fees - 214,500
Total revenues 5,564,151 1,224,229
Cost of goods sold 2,877,801 600,129
Gross profit 2,686,350 624,100
Operating expenses:
Sales, general and administrative 2,993,466 1,927,970
Research and development 191,374 127,124
Share-based compensation 1,511,417 20,998,118
Investor relations 307,172 306,001
Professional fees 677,339 816,249
Total operating expenses 5,680,768 24,175,462
Loss from operations (2,994,419) (23,551,362)
Other income (expense)
Interest income 18,299 4,497
Interest expense (896,021) (27,602)
Total other income (expense) (877,721) (23,105)
Net loss (3,872,140) (23,574,467)
Cumulative preferred dividends - 8,373
Net loss available to common shareholders (3,872,140) (23,582,840)
Basic and diluted loss per share (0.10) (1.18)
Basic and diluted weighted-average shares
outstanding 38,615,344 19,905,965

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
F-3
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NUTEACEA AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss

For the years ended
December 31

2005 2004
Net loss $ (3,872,140) $ (23,574,467)
Other comprehensive loss
Unrealized loss on marketable Securities (2,090,106) (2,012,398)
Comprehensive loss $ (5,962,246) $ (25,586,865)

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
F-4
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NUTEACEA AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Balance,
December 31,
2003
Amortization
of deferred
Compensation
Common stock
cancelled
Common stock
issued

for accounts
payable

for marketable
securities

for patent
incentive plan
for services
rendered

for settlements
Common stock
repurchased
Other
comprehensive
loss

Preferred
dividends
converted

to common
stock
Preferred stock
converted

to common
stock
Preferred stock
dividend
Preferred stock
dividend paid

NUTRACEA AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity
For the Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Convertible,
Redeemable Other
Series A Preferred
Stock Common Stock Deferred ComprehensiveAccumulated
Shares  Amount Shares Amount Compensation Loss Deficit Total
670,000 $ 351,790 11,773,842 $20,979,874 $(122,192)$ - $(21,344,955)$ (487,273)
57,648 57,648
(50,000) -
168,626 57,944 57,944
7,000,000 2,380,000 2,380,000
180,000 239,100 239,100
4,407,950 3,470,100 3,470,100
5,780,000 8,837,816 8,837,816
(344,956)  (230,000) (230,000)
(2,012,398) (2,012,398)
(5,986) 5,759 5,986 5,986
(540,000) (348,351) 630,000 348,351 348,351
8,373 (8,373) (8,373)
(48,004)
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Preferred stock

repurchased (130,000)

Reclass of options to

preferred stock 62,651 (62,651) (62,651)

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
F-5
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NUTEACEA AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity

For the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Amortization of deferred

compensation

Common stock

issued

for Consultants 1,904,805
for

Officers/Directors 70,000
for Patent

Incentive Plan 30,000
for Settlement 97,000
Preferred Stock

issued to Investors 7,850 7,850,000

RiceX Acquisition (20,473) 28,272,064
Stock options/warrants

exercised

for Cash 531,000
for Cashless 66,666
Stock

options/warrants

issued

for Consultants

for Employees

for Commissions (549,500)

Net Loss

Balance @

12/31/2005 7,850 7,300,500 67,102,079 $89,783,817 $

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
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80,954

906,759
30,100

12,600
97,655

40,028,539

105,432

349,449
130,000 (65,000)

80,954

906,759
30,100

12,600
97,655

7,850,000

40,028,539

105,432
0

349,449
65,000
(549,500)

(3,872,140) (3,949,848)

0 $(2,090,106)$ (48,799,935) 46,194,277
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NUTEACEA AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

NUTRACEA AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss (3,872,140) (23,574,467)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used
in operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 1,091,390 38,057
Non-cash issuances of common stock 1,017,014 12,365,859
Non-cash issuances of stock options & warrants 509,549 9,306,234
Modifications of options and warrants,

non-employees - 62,651
Modifications of options and warrants, employees - (48,590)
(Increase) decrease in

Accounts receivable (2,094,131) 22,772
Inventory 107,488 (233,170)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (106,395) (15,898)
Increase (decrease) in

Advances from related parties (71,081) 55,590
Accounts payable 246,030 (43,280)
Deferred compensation - 106,238
Accrued expenses (106,040) (43,771)
Customer deposits (100,000) -
Net cash used in operating activities (3,378,316) (2,001,775)
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of The RiceX Company, net of $546,148

cash received 32,777

Purchase of property and equipment (14,181) (117,421)
Payments for patents and trademarks (82,420) (56,184)
Net cash used in investing activities (63,842) (173,605)
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from notes payable, net - 1,635,174
Proceeds from private placement 7,300,500 -
Principal payments on notes payable, net of

discount (2,401,517) -
Payment of preferred dividends - (48,004)
Repurchase of preferred stock - (130,000)
Repurchase of common stock - (230,000)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 105,432 2,776,468
Net cash provided by financing activities 5,004,415 4,003,638
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Net increase (decrease) in cash 1,562,275 1,828,258
Cash, beginning of year 1,928,281 100,023
Cash, end of year $ 3,490,556 $ 1,928,281

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
F-7
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NUTEACEA AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash paid for interest

Cash paid for income taxes

Non-cash disclosures

Purchase of Langley PLC shares with common stock
Payments for patents with common stock
Conversion of preferred stock to common stock

F-8
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The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
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12,600 $
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1,391

2,380,000
239,100
354,337
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NUTEACEA AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND LINE OF BUSINESS
General

NutraCea was originally incorporated on February 4, 2000 in California as NutraStar Technologies Incorporated. On
December 14, 2001, NutraStar Technologies Incorporated (“NTI”) reorganized with the inactive publicly-held company,
Alliance Consumer International, Inc., and the name was changed to NutraStar Incorporated. The name was changed
again to NutraCea on October 1, 2003.

NutraCea is a health science company focused on the development and distribution of products based upon the use of
stabilized rice bran and proprietary rice bran formulations. Rice bran is the outer layer of brown rice which until
recently was a wasted by-product of the commercial rice industry. These products include food supplements and
medical foods which provide health benefits for humans and animals (known as "nutraceuticals") as well as cosmetics
and beauty aids based on stabilized rice bran, rice bran derivatives and the rice bran oils.

NutraGlo is a wholly-owned subsidiary of NutraCea. This subsidiary of the Company markets NutraCea’s products to
the equine market.

On October 4, 2005, NutraCea consummated the acquisition of RiceX pursuant to the terms of an Agreement and Plan
of Merger, dated April 4, 2005. RiceX survived the merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of NutraCea. RiceX
stockholders received .076799 of NutraCea common stock for each share of RiceX common stock. RiceX
shareholders received 28,272,064 shares of NutraCea common stock, valued at $29,120,226 and NutraCea assumed
the outstanding RiceX options and warrants to purchase 11,810,507 NutraCea common stock, valued at $11,421,684.

Due to the recent acquisition of RiceX, and the subsequent reorganization, NutraCea and its subsidiaries are operating
as one segment.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NutraCea and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries, NutraCea Technologies Incorporated, NutraGlo®, and The RiceX Company (collectively,
the "Company"). All significant inter-company accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Revenue Recognition - Revenue is generally recognized upon shipment of product with a provision for estimated
returns and allowances recorded at that time, if applicable. Commission revenue is generally recognized when earned
and collection is reasonably assured. Licensing revenue is recognized when earned and collection is reasonably
assured.

Accounts Receivable-The Company provides for the possible inability to collect accounts receivable by recording an
allowance for doubtful accounts. As of December 31, 2005, there were no uncollectible accounts.

Marketable Securities-Marketable securities are marked to market at each period end. Any unrealized gains and losses
on the marketable securities are excluded from operating results and are recorded as a component of Other
comprehensive income (loss). If declines in value are deemed other than temporary, losses are reflected in Net income
(loss).
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Inventory-Inventory is stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market and consists of stabilized rice bran
manufactured by RiceX, and nutraceutical products manufactured by NutraCea. While the Company has an inventory
of these products, any significant prolonged shortage of these ingredients or of the supplies used to enhance these
ingredients could materially adversely affect the Company's results of operations.

Property and Equipment-Property and equipment are stated at cost. The Company provides for depreciation using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives as follows:

Furniture and equipment 5-7 years
Automobile 5 years
Software 3 years
Leasehold Improvements 2.4-7 years
Property and equipment 7-10 years

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred while renewals and betterments are
capitalized. Gains or losses on the sale of property and equipment are reflected in the statements of operations.

Patents and Trademarks-In addition to patents filed and acquired directly by the Company, the Company owns several
patents, which were acquired from independent third parties and a related party. All costs associated with the patents
are capitalized. Patents acquired from related parties are recorded at the carryover basis of the transferor. The
Company paid cash as consideration for all patents and trademarks acquired, except the Via-Bran registered
trademark, which was acquired for 21,409 shares of common stock valued at $21,409.

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
F-9
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NUTEACEA AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

In conjunction with the RiceX acquisition, NutraCea has been assigned five U.S. patents relating to the production or
use of Nutraceutical or HVF products. The patents include:

(1)Patent Number 5,512,287 "PRODUCTION OF BETA-GLUCAN AND BETA-GLUCAN PRODUCT," which
issued on April 30, 1996;

(2)Patent Number 5,985,344 "PROCESS FOR OBTAINING MICRONUTRIENT ENRICHED RICE BRAN OIL,"
which issued on November 16, 1999;

(3)Patent Number 6,126,943 "METHOD FOR TREATING HYPERCHOLESTEROLEMIA, HYPERLIPIDEMIA,
AND ATHEROSCLEROSIS," which issued on October 3, 2000;

(4)Patent Number 6,303,586 B1 "SUPPORTIVE THERAPY FOR DIABETES, HYPERGLYCEMIA AND
HYPOGLYCEMIA," which issued on October 15, 2001; and

(5)Patent Number 6,350,473 B1 "METHOD FOR TREATING HYPERCHOLESTEROLEMIA,
HYPERLIPIDEMIA AND ATHEROSCLEROSIS," which issued on February 26, 2002.

We plan to apply for additional patents in the future as new products, treatments and uses are developed.

Amortization is computed on the straight-line method based on estimated useful lives of 12.25 to 20 years. The
Company also has registered trademarks, which are amortized over estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Deferred Compensation-Deferred compensation at December 31, 2005 represents the intrinsic value of options
previously issued to employees that have not been vested. All such options have vested as of December 31, 2005.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments-For certain of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash, accounts
receivable, inventory, prepaid expenses, accounts payable, accrued salaries and benefits, deferred compensation,
accrued expenses, customer deposits, due to related party, notes payable - related party, and note payable the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to their short maturities.

Stock-Based Compensation-Compensation is recorded for stock-based compensation grants based on the excess of the
estimated fair value of the common stock on the measurement date over the exercise price. Additionally, for
stock-based compensation grants to consultants, NutraCea recognizes as compensation expense the fair value of such
grants as calculated pursuant to SFAS No. 123, recognized over the related service period. SFAS No. 148 requires
companies to disclose pro forma results of the estimated effect on net income and earnings per share to reflect
application of the fair value recognition provision of SFAS No. 123.

For the years
Ended December 31,
2005 2004
Net loss available to common shareholders:

As reported: $ (3,872,140) $ (23,582,840)
Pro forma: $ (4,259,062) $ (25,955,080)
Basic loss per common share:

As reported: $ (0.10)0 $ (1.18)
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Pro forma: $ 0.11) $ (1.31)

Advertising Expense-The Company expenses all advertising costs, including direct response advertising, as they are
incurred. Advertising expense for 2005 and 2004 was $7,607 and $22,074, respectively.

Income Taxes-The Company accounts for income taxes under the liability method, which requires the recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the
financial statements or tax returns. Under this method, deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences
in future years of differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts at
each period end based on enacted tax laws and statutory tax rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are
expected to affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets
to the amount expected to be realized.

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
F-10
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Loss Per Share-Basic loss per share is computed by dividing loss available to common shareholders by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted loss per share is computed similar to basic loss per
share except that the denominator is increased to include the number of additional common shares that would have
been outstanding if the potential common shares had been issued and if the additional common shares were dilutive.
Common equivalent shares are excluded from the computation if their effect is anti-dilutive. As such, basic and
diluted loss per share is the same.

Estimates-The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

On August 24, 2005, NutraCea signed an agreement with a direct response marketing company to market and sell
products through infomercials. The agreement is for two years and may be extended for an additional year. The
agreement covers pricing of specific products at wholesale prices which will be private labeled for direct sale by the
marketing company. During the term of the agreement, NutraCea will not sell its products through any other
infomercials so long as the marketing company maintains minimum quarterly orders beginning October 1, 2005 of
$500,000. Additionally, NutraCea granted the company an option to purchase 250,000 shares of restricted common
stock at a price of $1.275 per share. The options vest 50,000 shares upon payment in full of the contract quarter
minimum purchase orders during the term of the agreement. For the year ended December 31, 2005, sales to this
customer totaled $3,012,947 or 54% of total sales.

On May 1, 2001, the Company entered into a three-year, exclusive distribution agreement with a customer, in which
the customer is required to purchase a minimum of 90,000 pounds of the Company's product on or before July 1,
2001, 120,000 pounds before September 1, 2002, 275,000 pounds between September 1, 2002 and August 31, 2003,
and 350,000 pounds between September 1, 2003 and August 31, 2004. During 2004, sales to this customer totaled
$600,976 (59% of total sales). During 2005, sales to this customer totaled $1,071,038 or 19% of total sales.

Reclassifications - Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year statement of operations to conform to the
current year presentation.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements-In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation” SFAS No. 123R establishes standards for the accounting for transactions in which an
entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. This Statement focuses primarily on accounting for
transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions. SFAS No. 123R
requires that the fair value of such equity instruments be recognized as expense in the historical financial statements as
services are performed. Prior to SFAS No. 123R, only certain pro forma disclosures of fair value were required. SFAS
No. 123R shall be effective for small business issuers as of the beginning of the first interim or annual reporting
period that begins after December 15, 2005. The impact of the adoption of this new accounting pronouncement would
be similar to the Company’s calculation of the pro forma impact on net income of SFAS 123 included in Stock-Based
Compensation above.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” SFAS No. 123R
establishes standards for the accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods
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or services. This Statement focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee
services in share-based payment transactions. SFAS No. 123R requires that the fair value of such equity instruments
be recognized as expense in the historical financial statements as services are performed. Prior to SFAS No. 123R,
only certain pro forma disclosures of fair value were required. SFAS No. 123R shall be effective for small business
issuers as of the beginning of the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after December 15, 2005. The
impact of the adoption of this new accounting pronouncement would be similar to the Company’s calculation of the
pro forma impact on net income of SFAS 123 included in Stock-Based Compensation above.

NutraCea does not expect the adoption of any other issued accounting pronouncements to have a significant impact on
its results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

NOTE 3 - MARKETABLE SECURITIES

On September 8, 2004, NutraCea purchased 1,272,026 shares of Langley Park Investment Trust, PLC, a United
Kingdom closed-end mutual fund, which is actively traded on a London Stock Exchange. NutraCea paid with
7,000,000 shares of its own common stock. Per the Agreement, NutraCea may sell 636,013 shares of Langley at any
time, and the remaining 636,013 shares of Langley and the 7,000,000 shares of NutraCea are escrowed for a 2-year
period. At the end of the period, Langley’s NutraCea shares are measured for any loss in market value and if so,
NutraCea must give up that pro-rata portion of its Langley shares up to the escrowed 636,013 shares.

As of December 31, 2005, the NutraCea shares had not lost any value. However, the Langley shares are marked down
to their fair market value of $289,894, with one-half or $144,947 shown as a current asset because they may be sold at
any time, and the other one-half shown as long-term because they are held in escrow pending the 2-year review of
NutraCea’s stock valuation.

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
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NOTE 4 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment at December 31, 2005 consisted of the following:

Land $ 5,000
Furniture and equipment 698,570
Automobile 73,096
Software 366,664
Leasehold improvements 395,871
Property and plant 4,510,000
Subtotal 6,049,201
Less accumulated depreciation (556,165)
Total $ 5,493,036

Depreciation expense was $240,795 and $16,303 for 2005 and 2004, respectively.

NOTE 5 - PATENTS AND TRADEMARKS

Patents and trademarks at December 31, 2005 consisted of the following:

Patents $ 2,456,988
Trademarks 80,154
Subtotal 2,537,132
Less accumulated amortization (119,317)
Total $ 2,417,815

Amortization expense was $69,815 and $21,754 for 2005 and 2004, respectively.
NOTE 6 - NOTES PAYABLE

In December 2004 NutraCea executed three promissory notes to third party investors totaling $2,400,000. The notes
are for a one year term, bear interest at 7% interest compounded quarterly and are secured by all of the assets of
NutraCea. The holders were issued warrants to purchase a total of 2,400,000 shares of NutraCea’s common stock at an
exercise price of $0.30 per share. The warrants are immediately exercisable and expire in seven years from the date of
issuance. A discount on the debt of $786,370 was recorded for these warrants and is being amortized over the life of
the notes. At October 4, 2005, the principle and interest on the three promissory notes were paid in full.

NOTE 7 - PUT OPTION

During the year ended December 31, 2001, NutraCea issued 130,000 shares of Series A preferred stock to a related
party as payment of accounts payable totaling $130,000. On January 15, 2002, these holders of the Series A preferred
stock executed a put/call agreement. The put allowed for the holder to sell to NutraCea all, but not less than all, of the
130,000 shares of NutraCea’s Series A preferred stock, or common stock if any of the Series A preferred stock were
converted, for $130,000, plus all accumulated, but unpaid dividends, at any time after six months from January 15,
2002. In addition, NutraCea maintained the right to call the option and purchase back the shares of the Series A
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preferred stock for $130,000, plus any unpaid and accrued dividends at any time, subject to certain provisions. During
2004, NutraCea purchased back the shares of the Series A preferred stock for $130,000.

NOTE 8 - INCOME TAXES

NutraCea has had losses since inception and, therefore, has not been subject to federal or state income taxes. As of
December 31, 2005, NutraCea had accumulated net operating loss ("NOL") carryforwards for income tax purposes of
approximately $23.0 million, resulting in a deferred tax asset amount of $8.0 million. All deferred tax asset amounts
are fully reserved. These carryforwards expire in 2019 through 2025.

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
F-12
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NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Employment contracts

Year Ending

December 31,
2006 $ 766,666
2007 950,000
2008 245,770
Total $ 1,962,436

Lease

NutraCea leases its office, laboratory and warehouse space in El Dorado Hills, California under a non-cancelable
operating lease with Roebbelen that expires in September 2006 and requires monthly payments of $7,414. The
Company also leases warehouse space in West Sacramento, California which expires in July of 2006 for $5,440 per
month. RiceX leases office space in Burley, Idaho at a rate of $550 per month, expiring in May of 2009. Future
minimum payments under these leases at December 31, 2005 were as follows:

Year Ending
December 31,
2006 $ 111,406
2007 6,600
2008 6,600
2009 2,200
Total $ 126,806

Rent expense was $110,501 and $64,688 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Agreements

For all agreements where stock is awarded as partial or full consideration, the expense is valued at the fair value of the
stock. Expense for stock options and warrants issued to consultants is calculated at fair value using the Black-Scholes
valuation method.

Effective January 1, 2004, NutraCea amended two executive employment contracts, Patricia McPeak and John

Howell, to reflect quarterly bonuses. Under the contract, compensation was to be $45,000 per calendar quarter, with
250,000 shares of common stock to be granted in the event NutraCea achieved gross revenues of $1 million or more
for the quarter. In addition, a one-time stock grant of 550,000 shares of common stock shall be awarded for the first
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quarter gross revenues equal or exceed $5 million. This bonus agreement is effective until April 15, 2006, unless
extended by the board. NutraCea also agreed to maintain an annual bonus program for members of the senior
management group, including the former Chief Executive Officer, Patricia McPeak. Patricia McPeak, the former
Chief Executive Officer will be eligible to receive an annual bonus under terms otherwise governing the annual bonus
program. The bonus amount for both executives in 2004 totaled $180,000, and was paid on April 1, 2004.

Effective January 1, 2004, NutraCea amended the stock options section of John Howell’s contract dated April 15,
2003. The amendment changed the vesting conditions on 250,000 shares of common stock to “upon the completion of
the twelfth month of employment “instead of “upon the Company achieving two successful calendar quarters of net
profits from operations of the business of the Company before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization as
conclusively determined by the independent certified public accountant for the Company”. The President resigned on
July 20, 2004.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, NutraCea entered into two consulting agreements with two communications
companies. The terms of the agreements ranged from 6 months to 1 year, compensation was $34,600 in cash, plus
27,930 shares of common stock valued at $43,350.

During fiscal 2004, NutraCea entered into two 90-day consulting agreements with two financial relations companies.
Total compensation was $50,000 cash, and 300,000 shares of common stock valued at $142,000.

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
F-13
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On March 25, 2004, NutraCea entered into two, two-year consulting agreements with two medical advisors and
directors. Under the terms of the agreement, compensation was 100,000 shares of common stock each, payable in
advance, and options to purchase 100,000 shares of common stock at a price of $.50 per share for the second year of
service. The 200,000 shares of common stock were valued at $286,000, and the options were valued at $107,684.

On March 25, 2004, NutraCea entered into a three-year consulting agreement with a development and marketing
company. Under the terms of the agreement, compensation shall be $1 per unit (a minimum 30-day supply of
NutraCea product) for up to a total accumulated payment of $750,000, and $.50 per unit thereafter, payable quarterly
within 45 days after the end of the quarter. In addition, NutraCea issued 100,000 shares of common stock for each
probiotic formulation NutraCea markets, and options to purchase 300,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price
of $1 per share with 100,000 options to be vested immediately and 50,000 shares per year thereafter. The vested
options were valued at $102,782.

On April 29, 2004, NutraCea entered into a one-year consulting agreement for research and development (with
options to extend for four successive terms of one year each) with two retired employees of NutraCea. Under the
terms of the agreements, annual compensation of $70,000 and $80,000 each is payable on a monthly basis. In
addition, each of the consultants received warrants to purchase 50,000 shares of common stock at $.20 a share. The
100,000 warrants were valued at $91,370 and expire in 5 years. Either party can cancel this agreement with 30-day
written notice.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, NutraCea entered into nine contracts ranging from 6 months to one year with
nine sales and marketing consultants. Total compensation included $ 24,000 in cash, 5,540,000 options and warrants
valued at $6,245,400, and 1,589,772 shares of common stock valued at $1,188,500. The terms of the options and
warrants ranged from an exercise price from $.001 to $1.20, immediately vested, and exercisable from 6 months to 3
years.

On August 1, 2004, NutraCea entered in a 90-day Independent Contractor Agreement with a contractor to prepare
reports regarding investor relations, prepare advertising and marketing materials, and prepare press releases.
Compensation was $12,000 payable in cash monthly. In 2005, this consultant signed an employment contract to
become the Company’s Senior Vice President and Corporate Secretary.

In 2004, NutraCea entered into a non-exclusive, non-transferable, revocable licensing agreement to import and
distribute the Company’s products in accordance with its marketing plan. The consultant paid the Company $214,500
for these distribution rights.

On July 14, 2004, NutraCea entered into a six-month consulting agreement with a business consultant to provide
NutraCea with consulting services and advice pertaining to NutraCea’s business affairs. Compensation was $12,000
payable in cash monthly. In addition, should the consultant provide assistance to NutraCea in the raising of capital
either in the form of equity or debt, NutraCea agreed to pay an additional bonus. The bonus for 2004, was $125,000
and 1,000,000 shares of common stock valued at $370,000.

On December 17, 2004, NutraCea entered into an employment contract with Bradley Edson to become the Company’s
President, whereby the Company will pay the officer a base salary of $50,000 in year one; a base salary of $150,000

in year two; and a base salary of $250,000 in year three. The agreement also provides that the officer is entitled to an
annual incentive bonus based upon performance and to be provided a car allowance of $600 per month. The incentive
bonus shall be paid annually within 10 days of the completion of the Company’s annual independent audit. In addition,
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the officer was issued warrants to purchase 6,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of
$0.30 per share. The warrants were valued at $600,000, are immediately exercisable, and expire in ten years from the
date of issuance.

On December 10, 2004 the Company entered into an employment agreement that expires December 31, 2007 with its

former Chief Executive Officer, Patricia McPeak, whereby the Company is to pay the officer a base salary of

$150,000 in year one; a base salary of $150,000 in year two; and a base salary of $250,000 in year three. The

agreement also provides that the officer is entitled to an annual incentive bonus based upon performance and to be

provided a car of the employee’s choice. The incentive bonus shall be paid annually within 10 days of the completion
of the Company’s annual independent audit. In addition, the officer was issued warrants to purchase 2,000,000 shares
of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.30 per share. The warrants were valued at $200,000,
immediately exercisable and expire in ten years from the date of issuance.

On January 25, 2005, NutraCea entered into a three year employment agreement with Margie Adelman, its Senior
Vice President and Secretary whereby NutraCea is to pay the officer a base salary of $150,000 per year. The
agreement also provides that the officer is entitled to a one-time initial bonus of $25,000 and will be eligible for future
incentive bonuses based solely on the discretion of the Chief Executive Officer or President of NutraCea and to be
approved by NutraCea’s Compensation Committee. Warrants to purchase 1,000,000 shares of NutraCea’s common
stock, valued at $130,000, at an exercise price of $0.30 per share were issued and will vest 500,000 at signing of the
employment agreement and 500,000 on January 25, 2006. Warrants to purchase 1,000,000 shares of NutraCea’s
common stock at an exercise price of $0.30 per share were also issued and will vest upon the achievement of
NutraCea obtaining “Gross Sales over $25,000,000” and NutraCea reports a positive EBITDA for the period. All
warrants expire in ten years from the date of issuance.

Generally, if the Company terminates these agreements without cause or the employee resigns with good reason, as
defined, the Company will pay the employees' salaries, bonuses, and benefits payable for the remainder of the term of
the agreements.

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
F-14
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On January 26, 2005 NutraCea entered into a 3 year, non-exclusive domestic agreement to distribute NutraCea’s rice
based nutraceutical products. An initial order for $25,000 was made concurrently with the signing of the agreement.
Products are sold to the distributor at NutraCea’s standard price schedule; purchases above certain annual minimum
requirements will then receive a 5% discount. Additionally, failure to meet these minimum purchase requirements is
cause for termination of the agreement at NutraCea’s option. NutraCea may also at its option terminate the agreement
upon 60 days written notice to the distributor.

On February 9, 2005, NutraCea issued 200,000 stock options with an exercise price of $0.45 per share, vesting over
three years, to two employees of NutraCea with each receiving 100,000 options. These options were granted at market
price and the intrinsic value of the employee options were valued at $0.

On February 10, 2005, NutraCea agreed to pay a finder’s fee to a consulting company consisting of stock options to
purchase 135,000 shares of common stock at a price of $0.45 per share, expiring in 3 year, valued at $45,224.

On March 1, 2005, NutraCea amended and restated a consulting agreement for science research and development
(with Company options to extend on an annual basis) with a retired employee of NutraCea. Under the terms of the
agreement, monthly compensation of $7,500 is payable. In addition, the consultant received warrants to purchase
10,000 shares of common stock at $.43 a share. The 10,000 warrants are valued at $3,131 and expire in three years.
Either party can cancel this agreement with 30-day written notice. If the agreement is extended past the first year then
monthly compensation will be increased to $8,333 with additional warrants to purchase 15,000 shares of common
stock at the market price per share at the date of extension. Additionally, for each patent granted to NutraCea whereby
the consultant is listed as inventor, the consultant shall receive 15,000 shares of restricted common stock; however the
maximum value of the stock grant shall not exceed $15,000 based on the closing bid price of NutraCea’s common
stock on the date the patent is granted, with the total shares granted reduced accordingly. Also, in November of 2005,
NutraCea executed an agreement with this consultant for rights to use two clinical studies in perpetuity for $10,000. If
any patent is granted by the patent office to NutraCea, which uses the clinical studies as supporting documentation,
the Company agrees to pay the consultant an additional payment of $10,000.

In February of 2005, the Company terminated a consulting agreement with a retired employee, then in May of 2005,
NutraCea entered into a one year consulting agreement (with Company options to extend on an annual basis) with the
same retired employee of NutraCea, primarily for research and development work. Under the terms of the agreement,
monthly compensation of $6,667 is payable. In addition, the consultant received warrants to purchase 10,000 shares of
common stock at $0.50 a share. The 10,000 warrants are valued at $3,395 and expire in three years. Either party can
cancel this agreement with 30-day written notice. Additionally, for each patent granted to NutraCea whereby the
consultant is listed as inventor, the consultant shall receive 15,000 shares of restricted common stock.

In 2005, NutraCea entered into a two medical advisory agreements ranging from 1 year to 5 years. Under the terms of
one the agreements, annual compensation shall be 15,000 warrants to purchase shares of common stock at the market
price on the anniversary date for the next four years. The option price for the first year of service is a price of $.50 per
share, expiring in 3 years, valued at $5,462. The other agreement paid 8,000 shares of common, valued at $10,400,
and options of 30,000 shares at $.60 a share, expiring in 5 years, valued at $34,121.

On March 23, 2005, NutraCea agreed to pay $15,000 of unpaid fees to a web design consultant and issued 26,786
shares of common stock, valued at $15,000.
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On April 5, 2005, NutraCea hired a financial services firm for $50,000 to assist in evaluating the proposed merger
with RiceX and to provide a fairness opinion.

On April 5, 2005, NutraCea hired an information technology and marketing firm to assist in the development of sales
of NutraCea’s products over the Internet. This agreement was subsequently terminated in August 2005 and total of
105,000 options vested during the term that this contract was effective. The options are vested, expire in 4 year, with

an exercise price of $.60 a share.

On April 12, 2005, NutraCea granted various rights to its principal equine division products customer that specifically
include:

(1) The grant to NutraCea of exclusive worldwide rights to manufacture certain equine products for the customer.

(2)  The transfer and assignment of the customer’s technology rights granted to it in a prior agreement for
1,222,222 shares of NutraCea’s common stock.

(3) The transfer and assignment of technology rights of a limited liability corporation formed by the customer and
granted to it in a prior agreement for 166,667 shares of NutraCea’s common stock

@) The grant of marketing and distribution rights to the customer covering:

a)the right of first offer to market new products as may be developed by NutraCea or proposed to be developed by
the customer for non-human markets; and

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
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b)the right of first refusal in the event that a third party independently contacts NutraCea regarding the marketing and
distribution of new, non-human products.

The customer agrees to use NutraCea as the exclusive manufacturer for any new, non-human products as defined and
may owe a royalty to NutraCea of 5% royalty on new products on revenues exceeding specified annual minimum
volume levels.

On April 18, 2005, a direct response marketing company hired NutraCea’s former Chief Executive Officer, Patricia
McPeak, whereby she will receive a royalty of $1 per unit sold resulting from infomercials that will demonstrate
specific products of NutraCea. Royalty payments will be made by the direct response marketing company and are not
an obligation of NutraCea.

On April 19, 2005, NutraCea signed an agreement with a direct response marketing company to market and sell
products through infomercials. This contract was amended on August 24, 2005. The agreement is for two years and
may be extended for an additional year. The agreement covers pricing of specific products at wholesale prices which
will be private labeled for direct sale by the marketing company. During the term of the agreement NutraCea will not
sell the products designated in the agreement through any other infomercials so long as the marketing company
maintains minimum quarterly orders beginning October 1, 2005 of $500,000. Additionally, NutraCea granted the
company an option to purchase 250,000 shares of restricted common stock at a price of $1.275 per share. The options
vest 50,000 shares upon payment in full of the contract quarter minimum purchase orders during the term of the
agreement.

On May 5, 2005, NutraCea’s hired a consulting company to provide patent and license analysis. The agreement is for
one year and may be terminated by either party with 30 days written notice. Based on the performance schedule in the
contract, the Company issued 359,182 shares of common stock, valued at $171,959.

Effective June 1, 2005, NutraCea entered into a one year consulting agreement with an investor relations firm. Either
party may terminate the agreement upon four months written notice to the other party. Under the terms of the
agreement monthly compensation is $5,000. In addition, the consulting firm received options to purchase 250,000
shares of common stock at $0.65 per share, expiring in 5 years, valued $90,044, expiring in five years, and vesting on
the contract anniversary date.

On July 1, 2005 NutraCea hired a company for 12 months (which can be terminated by written notice by either party)
to provide potential qualified customer introductions. NutraCea granted the company an option to purchase 250,000
shares of restricted common stock at a price of $0.65 per share. The options do not vest until NutraCea has received
purchase orders of at least $2,000,000 from a qualifying agreement during the term of the agreement plus 12 months
from the termination of the service agreement from any qualifying agreement. Additionally, upon vesting of the
option NutraCea shall pay the company a reasonable royalty fee based on the net profits received from a qualifying
agreement.

On July 1, 2005 NutraCea entered into a consulting agreement with an individual to assist in the research and
validation of NutraCea’s products in the medical foods market. The term of the agreement is for six months. NutraCea
granted the individual an option to purchase 250,000 shares of restricted common stock at a price of $0.65 per share,
valued at $120,221.
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In conjunction with the private placement of series B preferred stock, NutraCea exclusively hired a financial advisory
services company for a term of 12 months. Compensation was a $10,000 advisory fee and 1,099,000 options to
purchase common stock, with an exercise of $.50 expiring in five years, valued at $1,085,713.

On October 1, 2005, NutraCea entered into a one-year consulting agreement with an independent contractor. Under
the terms of the agreement, compensation shall be an initial issuance of 50,000 S-8 shares of common stock plus
$15,000 in cash or its equivalent value in S-8 shares of common stock. Also, during the term of the contract, NutraCea
shall pay monthly either $5,000 cash or S-8 common stock valued at $5,000, with the type of payment at NutraCea’s
discretion. In addition, the independent contractor is entitled to a 2% commission based on net profits resulting from
contracts with customers introduced to NutraCea by the independent contractor.

On July 14, 2005, NutraCea hired for 9 months (and can be terminated by either party), an individual to assist in
forming a joint operating agreement with a rice mill in either Ecuador or Colombia. NutraCea shall pay the finder a
fee based on net income. The joint entity transaction must include a purchase commitment arranged by the venture
party from the applicable country for a minimum of 100,000 servings per day for the first two years while a
production plant is being constructed and a subsequent commitment for an additional 1,000,000 servings per day for at
least two additional years after the production plant has been constructed. The venture party must fund the
construction of the production plant.

In the fall of 2005, the Company entered into agreements with four international companies, serving seven countries,
as follows:

(1) A joint venture with a Dominican Republic rice mill was formed with NutraCea, to install equipment to annually
produce at least 5,000 metric tons of stabilized rice bran. The joint venture will be equally owned by the two
companies and will commercially sell stabilized-rice-bran products through retail and government entities in the
Dominican Republic and Haiti.;

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
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(2) The Company signed an agreement with an industrial consortium in Colombia to study the creation of a joint
entity to share equally in the profits generated from sales of NutraCea products in the Colombian market. The
agreement includes provisions for the Colombian consortium to provide 50% of all the financing necessary to
construct the plants (with NutraCea providing the remaining 50% of the financing), responsible for providing all
the necessary land and space required for the implementation of the plants, and providing for all of the sales and
distribution as part of its contribution to the joint entity. It is the intention of the parties to execute a formal
definitive agreement on or before March 25, 2006.;

3 NutraCea agreed with an Ecuadorian company to study arriving at a definitive agreement for a working
arrangement that will allow the Ecuadorian company the right to utilize NutraCea's proprietary
ingredients and value-added processing in their multi-faceted food business, which includes animal feed,
poultry and cereals.; and,

(4)NutraCea signed a Supply and Distribution Agreement with T. Geddes Grant, a Jamaican Corporation, to deliver a
customized formulated and fortified RiSolubles mix. The agreement requires that T. Geddes Grant purchase a
minimum of $4,500,000 of the custom formulation per year for a term of two years. T. Geddes Grant is appointed
as exclusive distributor for the territory of Jamaica, Barbados and Trinidad. T. Geddes Grant is obligated to obtain
all necessary regulatory approvals for marketing NutraCea products in the Territory and use its best efforts to
develop commercial sales in the Territory.

On November 8, 2005, the Company granted the non-exclusive right to advertise, promote, market, sell and distribute
NutraCea’s products world-wide for two years. If this distributor achieves net sales in amounts of $500,000 per
calendar quarter, then NutraCea may agree to an exclusive arrangement. NutraCea may terminate with agreement with
90 days written notice.

Merger with the RiceX Company

On October 4, 2005, NutraCea merged with RiceX, with RiceX surviving the Merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of
NutraCea. Each share of RiceX common stock outstanding was converted into the right to receive 0.76799 shares of
NutraCea’s common stock.

The stockholders of RiceX received 28,272,064 shares of NutraCea common stock in exchange for 100% of the shares
of RiceX common stock, and NutraCea assumed the outstanding options and warrants to purchase 11,810,507 shares
of RiceX common stock.

Private Placement

On October 4, 2005, certain investors purchased an aggregate of 7,850 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
at a price of $1,000 per share pursuant to the Purchase Agreement. The preferred shares can be converted to shares of
common stock at a conversion rate of 2,000 shares of common stock for each preferred share issued in the transaction.
Additionally, pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the investors were issued warrants to purchase an aggregate
7,850,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.70 per share. The warrants have a term of five years and
are immediately exercisable.

NutraCea analyzed these instruments for derivative accounting consideration under SFAS 133 and EITF 00-19.
NutraCea determined that derivative accounting is not applicable for the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock.
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An advisor for the financing received a customary fee based on aggregate gross proceeds received from the investors
and a warrant to purchase 1,099,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price per share of $0.50 per share.

Litigation

On July 16, 2002, the Company was summoned to answer a Complaint filed by Faraday Financial, Inc. (“Faraday”) in
District Court, County of Salt Lake, Utah (Case No. 020906477). The Complaint alleges that the Company issued
convertible promissory notes totaling $450,000 and a promissory note totaling $50,000. On December 13, 2001,
Faraday entered into a settlement agreement with the Company, whereby Faraday agreed to cancel the promissory
notes in exchange for 735,730 shares of preferred stock. Faraday claims that the settlement agreement required that
the Company effect a registration statement covering the preferred stock by June 30, 2002, which the Company failed
to do, and demands the Company immediately forfeit to Faraday 735,730 shares of common stock owned by the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Faraday has filed its fourth claim for relief for a judgment against the Company
for $500,000, plus accrued, but unpaid interest, attorneys’ fees and costs, and other such costs. A Settlement
Agreement was executed on December 10, 2003. In consideration for the mutual releases, Faraday converted 735,730
preferred into 735,730 common shares and $90,127 of accrued preferred dividends into 1,201,692 common shares.
Within the next year, if Faraday cannot realize $551,797 and approximately $9800 in legal expenses from the sale of
the common shares, NutraCea will make up any deficiency. If stock sale exceeds $561,597, Faraday is entitled to keep
any excess. Subsequent to December 31, 2003, the Company issued an additional 250,000 shares to Faraday.
Concurrently, with the executed Settlement Agreement, a joint stipulated motion to stay all proceedings was filed with
the Court. After all the above conditions are met, if Faraday has not lifted the stay within 18 months of December 10,
2003, NutraCea shall deliver to Faraday an executed stipulation for dismissal with prejudice of the Complaint and
Counterclaim. In 2005, we issued the final 97,000 shares, valued at $97,655, to Faraday to settle in full the executed
Settlement Agreement.

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
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NOTE 10- THE RICEX ACQUISITION

On October 4, 2005, NutraCea merged with RiceX. The stockholders of RiceX received 28,272,064 shares of
NutraCea common stock in exchange for 100% of the shares of RiceX common stock, and NutraCea assumed the
outstanding options and warrants to purchase 11,810,507 shares of RiceX common stock.

On October 4, 2005, certain investors purchased an aggregate of 7,850 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
at a price of $1,000 per share. Additionally, the investors were issued warrants to purchase an aggregate 7,850,000

shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.70 per share. An advisor for the financing received a customary fee
based on aggregate gross proceeds received from the investors and a warrant to purchase 1,099,000 shares of common
stock at an exercise price per share of $0.50 per share.

The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The purchase price allocation included
within these Consolidated Financial Statements is based on a purchase price of $40,541,910 calculated as follows:

RiceX shares outstanding at October 4, 2005

Exchange ratio
NutraCea shares issued

Price per share (NutraCea closing price, October 4, 2005)
Aggregate value of NutraCea common stock consideration
Value of the RiceX warrants and options assumed

Total consideration

Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired:

Estimate of fair value adjustment of property, plant and equipment
Acquired other net tangibles assets

Estimate of fair value adjustment of RiceX intellectual property

Goodwill
Total

&+ A FH

RS RC R o R e

36,813,274
0.76799
28,272,064
1.03
29,120,226
11,421,684

40,541,910

5,600,000
610,904
2,000,000
32,331,006
40,541,910

The purchase price allocation is based on estimates and assumptions, which are preliminary. This information is
presented for informational purposes only.

F-18

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
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The accompanying unaudited pro forma condensed combined consolidated statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2005 is presented for illustrative purposes only and does not give effect to any cost savings, revenue
synergies or restructuring costs which may result from the integration of NutraCea and RiceX’s operations. In addition,
actual results may be different from the projections set forth in this unaudited pro forma condensed combined
consolidated statement of operations.

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Consolidated
Statement of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2005

HISTORICAL PRO FORMA

Income Statement NutraCea RiceX Adjustment Combined
Revenues
Net sales $ 4,569,000 $ 3,838,000 $ (325,000) @ $ 8,082,000
Total Revenues $ 4,569,000 $ 3,838,000 $ (325,000) $ 8,082,000
COGS $ 2,523,000 $ 1,533,000 $ (325,000) (b) $ 3,731,000
Gross Profit $ 2,046,000 $ 2,305,000 $ - $ 4,351,000,
SALES, GENERAL AND
ADMINISTRATIVE $ 2,853,019 $ 5,085,000 $ (55,000) ¢ $ 7,883,019
RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT $ 262,000 $ 267,000 $ 529,000
STOCK OPTION AND
WARRANT EXPENSE $ 1,511,000 $ - $ 1,511,000
INVESTOR RELATIONS $ - % 41,000 $ 41,000
PROFESSIONAL FEES $ 109,000 $ 914,029 $ 1,023,029
Loss From Operations $ (2,689,019) $ (4,002,029) $ (55,000) $ (6,636,048)

$ - 3 - $ -
Interest Income $ 10,000 $ - $ 10,000
Interest Expense $ (878,000) $ (878,000)
Provision for income tax $ - 5 (2,000) $ (2,000)
Total other income (expense) $ (878,000) $ 8,000 $ - $ (870,000)
Net Income (Loss) $ (3,567,019) $ (3,994,029) $ 55,000 $  (7,506,048)
Cumulative Preferred dividends $ - % - $ -
Net Loss Available to Common
Shareholders $ (3,567,019) $ (3,994,029) $ 55,000 $ (7,506,048)
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Basic and Diluted Loss per share $ (0.10)

Basic Shares Outstanding 38,830,015 28,272,064 (d)
(@ Represents the elimination of intercompany sales

(b) Represents the elimination of intercompany cost of sales

© Represents the elimination of intercompany rent expense of sublease

(d) Represents the net change in total combined common stock outstanding

NOTE 11 - PREFERRED AND COMMON STOCK

Convertible, Redeemable Series A Preferred Stock

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
F-19
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The Company’s Series A preferred stock was convertible at the option of the holder at $1 per share into the Company’s
common stock, subject to certain anti-dilution provisions. In addition, the Series A preferred stock will automatically
convert into common stock in the event of a qualified public trading benchmark, which is defined as (i) the common
stock is listed on a national exchange at twice its conversion price or (ii) the common stock is quoted on the
over-the-counter bulletin board at an average bid price of at least $1.25 per share over any 30-day trading period. At
December 31, 2004, all the outstanding preferred stock was either repurchased or converted under option (ii) above.
During the year ended December 31, 2004 the Company:
(D) repurchased 130,000 shares of preferred stock for $130,000;
(2) converted 540,000 shares of preferred stock into 630,000 shares of common stock valued at $348,351; and,

(3) issued 5,759 shares of common stock in payment of preferred stock dividends due in the amount of $5,986.

Convertible, Series B Preferred Stock

On October 4, 2005, certain investors purchased an aggregate of 7,850 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock
at a price of $1,000 per share pursuant to the Purchase Agreement. The preferred shares can be converted to shares of
common stock at a conversion rate of 2,000 shares of common stock for each preferred share issued in the transaction.
Additionally, pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the investors were issued warrants to purchase an aggregate
7,850,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $0.70 per share, valued at $7,690,032. The warrants have a
term of five years and are immediately exercisable.

We analyzed these instruments for derivative accounting consideration under SFAS 133 and EITF 00-19. We
determined that derivative accounting is not applicable for the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock.

An advisor for the financing received a customary fee based on aggregate gross proceeds received from the investors
and a warrant to purchase 1,099,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price per share of $0.50 per share valued
at $1,085,713

Common Stock

On March 25, 2004, NutraCea established the NutraCea Patent Incentive Plan, which grants 15,000 shares of common
stock to each named inventor on each granted patent, which is assigned to NutraCea. Under the terms of this plan
during the year ended December 31, 2004, NutraCea issued 180,000 shares of common stock valued at $239,100.
During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company issued 30,000 shares of common stock valued at $12,600.
During the year ended December 31, 2004, NutraCea:

(1)issued 280,000 shares of common stock to two consultants in settlement of contractual agreements valued at
$477,816;

(2)issued 5,500,000 shares of common stock valued at $8,360,000 to Patricia McPeak, NutraCea’s former Chief
Executive Officer for services and cancellation of indebtedness;
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(3)repurchased 344,956 shares of common stock valued at $230,000 from Patricia McPeak the former Chief
Executive Officer of NutraCea pursuant to a repurchase agreement;

4 converted preferred dividends in the amount of $5,986 into 5,759 shares of common stock;
&) issued 3,767,950 shares of common stock to consultants for services rendered valued at $2,542,300;
(6) issued 640,000 shares of common stock to officers and directors for services rendered valued at $927,800;
(7)  issued 168,626 shares of common stock to vendors in payment of accounts payable totaling $57,944;

(8)issued 6,579,323 shares of common stock pursuant to the exercise of stock options for cash totaling $2,776,468;
and

(9)converted 540,000 shares of preferred stock to 630,000 shares of common stock pursuant to the Mandatory
Conversion paragraph of the Private Placement Memorandum dated November 9, 2001.

On September 8, 2004, NutraCea and Langley Park Investments PLC (“Langley’) signed a Stock Purchase Agreement
under which NutraCea agreed to sell 7,000,000 shares of its common stock to Langley. The transaction will close at
the time that Langley’s shares are trading on the London Stock Exchange for anticipated consideration to NutraCea (i)
immediately following the closing of approximately $1,190,000 U.S.D. in Langley stock, and (ii) additional
consideration of that number of Langley shares which, as of the closing, will have a value of approximately
$1,190,000 (the “Langley Shares”). NutraCea has agreed to hold the Langley Shares in escrow for two years from the
date of closing. After the two-year holding period, the Langley Shares will be subject to possible reduction in number
if NutraCea’s common shares are trading at a value of less than $0.34 U.S.D. After such reduction, if any, the
remaining Langley Shares may be sold by NutraCea at their then current value. Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement,
Langley has agreed that it will not sell, transfer or assign any or all of the NutraCea shares for a period of two years
following the closing without the prior written consent of NutraCea, which consent may be withheld by NutraCea in
its sole discretion.

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
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During the year ended December 31, 2005 NutraCea:
(5) issued 1,904,805 shares of common stock to seven consultants for services rendered, valued at $906,759;
(6) issued 70,000 shares of common stock to two officers and directors, valued at $30,100;

(7)issued a total of 30,000 shares of common stock to two consultants under the Patent Incentive Plan, valued at
$12,600; and

(8)issued 97,000 shares of common stock, valued at $97,655, to Faraday, which was the last required payment to
Faraday under the Settlement Agreement dated December 10, 2003.

NOTE 12 - STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

Expense for stock options and warrants issued to consultants is calculated at fair value using the Black-Scholes
valuation method.

On October 31, 2003, the Board of Directors approved and adopted the 2003 Stock Compensation Plan and authorized
the President of the Company to execute a registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933 for 10,000,000
shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2005, 9,966,208 shares of common stock and no options have been
granted under the 2003 Stock Compensation Plan.

The expense, if any, of stock options issued to employees is recognized over the shorter of the term of service or
vesting period. The expense of stock options issued to consultants or other third parties are recognized over the term
of service. In the event services are terminated early or no specific future performance is required by the Company,
the entire amount is recognized. The unamortized portion of the expense to be recognized is recorded as deferred
compensation.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, NutraCea:

(1)issued 6,998,493 warrants with exercise prices between $0.001 and $5.00 per share to consultants. The warrants,
valued at $7,761,515, expire at varying times between six months and five years;

(2)issued 25,000 employee stock options, valued at $21,000, have an exercise price of $0.20, and expire in five years;

(3)issued 8,000,000 stock options to two officers with an exercise price of $0.30, expiring in 10 years, valued at
$800,000; and

(4)issued 2,400,000 warrants with an exercise price of $0.30, in conjunction with notes payable issued by the
Company during the quarter. The warrants are immediately exercisable and expire in seven years from the date of
issuance. A total of $786,371 of accrued debt discount expense was recorded relating to the issue of these warrants
and is being amortized over the term of the notes payable.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, NutraCea:

(1
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assumed 11,810,507 options and warrants with exercise prices between $0.15 and $1.66 per share relating to the
acquisition of RiceX. The warrants, valued a $11,421,684, expire at varying times between 9 months and 10 years;

(2)issued 1,305,000 options and warrants to purchase common stock to ten consultants, valued at $349,449; The
warrants expire from three-five years, and have exercise prices between $0.30 and $1.275 per share;

(3)issued 1,099,000 warrants to purchase common stock, valued at $1,085,713, for commissions, relating to private
placement of preferred stock. The warrants have an exercise price of $0.50 and expire in five years;

(4)issued 7,850,000 warrants to purchase common stock to 17 investors in conjunction with the preferred private
placement, valued at $7,690,032, exercisable for $0.70 and expiring in five years;

(5)issued 2,200,000 options to 3 employees, valued at $130,000, exercisable between $0.30 and $0.46 per share,
expiring in ten years;

(6) exercised 531,000 options and warrants for common stock for cash in the amount of $105,432; and,
7 cashless exercise of 100,000 options and warrants for 66,666 shares of common stock.

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
F-21
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The following tables summarize all of the Company’s stock option and warrant transactions:

EMPLOYEES
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
Price Shares Price Shares
Outstanding, Beginning of Period $ 0.34 8,289,700 $ 0.56 764,700
Granted $ 0.31 2,200,000 $ 0.30 8,025,000
Expired $ 0.00 0 $ 0.00 0
Assumed $ 0.36 8,047,765 $ 0.00 0
Exercised $ 0.00 0 $ 0.01 (500,000)
Outstanding, End of Period $ 0.34 18,537,465  $ 0.34 8,289,700
Exercisable, End of Period $ 0.35 16,837,465 $ 0.34 8,289,700
CONSULTANTS
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
Price Shares Price Shares
Outstanding, Beginning of Period $ 0.98 6,095,156 $ 0.98 3,196,819
Granted $ 0.67 10,554,000 $ 0.62 9,598,493
Expired $ 0.01 (135,004) $ 4.94 (220,833)
Assumed $ 0.69 3,762,742  $ 0.00 0
Exercised $ 0.12 (531,000) $ 0.43 (6,479,323)
Outstanding, End of Period $ 0.75 19,745,894  $ 0.85 6,095,156
Exercisable, End of Period $ 0.74 19,115,894 $ 0.85 5,845,156

Other information regarding stock options and warrants outstanding at December 31, 2005 is as follows:

Options/Warrants Outstanding Options/Warrants Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Range of Remaining Life Number of Average Average
Exercise Price (Years) Shares Exercise Price  Number of Shares Exercise Price
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$0.01-$0.18 .5-5 144,629 $ 0.15 144,629  $ 0.15

$0.20-$0.50 2-10 22,235,898  § 0.31 20,535,898  $ 0.31

$0.60-$0.80 3-5 13,331,333  $ 0.70 13,081,333  § 0.70

$1.00-$2.75 .5-5 2,170,467  $ 1.26 1,790,467 $ 1.26

$5.00 4-5 355,670 $ 5.00 355,670 $ 5.00

$10.00 10 45362 $ 10.00 45362  $ 10.00
38,283,359 35,953,359

The weighted average fair value of the stock options granted during 2005 and 2004 was $0.54 and $.69 respectively.
Variables used in the Black Scholes option/warrant-pricing model include (1) 2.0% risk-free interest rate, (2) expected
option/warrant life is the actual remaining life of the options/warrants as of each year-end, (3) expected volatility
ranged from 112% to 166%, and (4) zero expected dividends.

NOTE 13 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
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In November 2004, the Board of Directors resolved to purchase a new automobile valued at $73,096 for use by
Patricia McPeak, the former Chief Executive Officer. Ms. McPeak waived a car allowance in exchange for use of the
automobile.

In 2004, two directors received 100,000 shares of common stock each, to serve as the Chairman of the Medical
Advisory Board and the Corporate Medical Director.

Also, in 2004, a director-owned partnership received 300,000 shares of common stock and options to purchase
300,000 shares of common stock, exercisable at $1.00, with 100,000 options vesting immediately and the remaining
200,000 options vesting at 50,000 options per year.

In the first quarter of 2005, 70,000 shares of common stock, valued at $30,100, were issued to two directors.

In April 2005, a direct response marketing company agreed to compensate NutraCea’s former Chief Executive Officer,
Patricia McPeak, whereby she will receive a royalty per unit sold resulting from infomercials that will demonstrate
specific products of NutraCea. Pursuant to this agreement, Ms. McPeak should have earned approximately $270,000
in 2005 from this direct marketing company. The aggreement provides for royalty payments to be made over the next
two years by the direct response marketing company and are not the obligations of NutraCea.

NOTE 14 - 401(K) PROFIT SHARING PLAN

Effective April 2000, NutraCea adopted a 401(k) profit sharing plan (the "Plan") for the exclusive benefit of eligible
employees and their beneficiaries. Substantially all employees are eligible to participate in the Plan. Matching
contributions to the Plan are 3% of the employees' gross salary, not to exceed a certain percentage. For 2005 and 2004,
NutraCea made matching contributions of $40,750 and $16,064 respectively.

NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (UNAUDITED)

On January 11, 2006, the Board resolved to issue 100,000 options to a consultant for past services, with an exercise
price of $1.00, expiring in 3 years, valued at $34,087. An additional 100,000 options, with an exercise price of $1.00,
and expiring in 3 years were authorized with vesting as follows:

50,000 options, if contracts generated gross revenue of $5,000,000 over the next 24 months; and

50,000 options, if contracts generated gross revenue of $10,000,000 over the next 24 months.

In addition, this consultant will be eligible to receive 10% of gross margins on a specified customer.

In January 2006, two individuals exercised 120,000 options/warrants using their cashless exercise provision for a total
of 42,576 shares of common stock.

In the first quarter of 2006, a total 15,967 S-8 shares of common stock were issued to one consultant for services
rendered, valued at $15,000.

In February and March 2006, six preferred series B stock holders converted 600 shares into 1,200,000 shares of

NutraCea common stock. The preferred shares converted at a conversion rate of 2,000 shares of common stock for
each preferred share.
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In February 2006, we issued 100,000 options to purchase common stock to a director. The options expire in 5 years,
have an exercise price of $1.00, and are valued at $71,705.

In January and February 2006, we issued a total of 80,000 options to purchase common stock to three consultants. The
options expire from 2.5 to 4 years, have exercise prices from $.50 to $1.00, and are valued at $62,602.

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financials
F-23
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Item CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
8. FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None

Item SA. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined under Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended) as of the end of the year covered by this report. Based upon that evaluation, our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective in timely
alerting them to material information relating to us (including our consolidated subsidiary) that is required to be
included in our periodic reports.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.
There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by this

report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.

Item 8B. OTHER INFORMATION.
None
PART III
Item 9. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT.

As a result of the merger with RiceX and effective as of October 4, 2005 James Kluber resigned as the Chief Financial
Officer of NutraCea, Patricia McPeak resigned as Chief Executive Officer of NutraCea and Ernie Bodai resigned as a
director of NutraCea. Effective as of October 4, 2005 Todd Crow was appointed Chief Financial Officer of NutraCea,
Bradley Edson was appointed Chief Executive Officer of NutraCea, Ike Lynch was appointed Chief Operating Officer
of NutraCea and Steven Saunders, James Lintzenich and Edward McMillan were appointed to NutraCea’s Board of
Directors. All of the newly appointed individuals, with the exception of Mr. Edson, had held similar positions with
RiceX.

33
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NAME AGE POSITION
Bradley D. Edson (1)(2) 46 Chief Executive Officer, President and Director
Todd C. Crow (1) 57 Chief Financial Officer

Ike E. Lynch (1) 61 Chief Operating Officer

Margie D. Adelman 45 Secretary and Senior Vice President
David Bensol (3)(4) 50 Director

Eliot Drell (4) 51 Director

James C. Lintzenich (2)(3)(4) 52 Director

Edward L. McMillan (2)(3) 60 Director

Patricia McPeak (5) 65 Director, Chairperson of the Board
Steven W. Saunders 50 Director

(1)Messrs. Edson, Crow and Lynch also serve as Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Operating Officer of our subsidiary, The RiceX Company.

(2)Messrs. Edson, Lintzenich and McMillan are also on the Board of Directors of our subsidiary, The RiceX
Company.

3) Member of the Audit Committee.
4) Member of the Compensation Committee.

(5)Resigned as our Chief Executive Officer on October 4, 2005, remains as one of our director and Chairperson of

the Board.

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Bradley D. Edson, has served as our Chief Executive Officer since October 2005 and as our President and as one of
our directors since December 2004. Since October 2005, Mr. Edson also serves as Chief Executive Officer of our
subsidiary, The RiceX Company, and one of its directors. Mr. Edson was formerly the Chairman and CEO of Vital
Living Inc. (OTC BB: VTLYV), a company that primarily developed and marketed nutraceuticals. Prior to Vital Living,
Mr. Edson spent a decade developing a nationwide insurance agency focused on distribution channels for specialty
products for the retail market. Prior to that, Mr. Edson was a former principal and officer of a NASD broker/dealer
firm. Mr. Edson holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Finance from Arizona State University.

Todd C. Crow, has served as our Chief Financial Officer since October 2005. Mr. Crow has served as Vice President
of Finance and Chief Financial Officer of The RiceX Company since November 1998 and as Secretary of The RiceX
Company from January 1999 to October 2005. From September 1997 to November 1998, Mr. Crow was Controller of
The RiceX Company and from May 1996 to September 1997, he was The RiceX Company’s Chief Financial Officer.
Prior to joining The RiceX Company, Mr. Crow held senior financial positions with the Morning Star Group, an
agri-business holding company, and Harter, Inc., a food-processing manufacturer.

Ike E. Lynch has served as our Chief Operating Officer since October 2005. Mr. Lynch also currently serves as Chief
Operating Officer of The RiceX Company and President and Chief Operating Officer of RiceX Nutrients . From
January 1997 through 2004, Mr. Lynch served as Vice President of Operations and International Business
Development of The RiceX Company. In 2005, Mr. Lynch became Chief Executive Officer of The RiceX Company
and served in that position until the RiceX/NutraCea merger. From 1966 through 1982, Mr. Lynch was employed by
the H. J. Heinz Company in various management roles, culminating with the President and CEO position of the
Hubinger Company, a subsidiary of Heinz. In 1982, Mr. Lynch left Heinz to become President and CEO of Dawn
Enterprises LLC, specializing in Ethanol production and marketing. Mr. Lynch left Dawn Enterprises in 1989 to form
Centennial Foods, Incorporated, where he served as President and Chief Executive Officer until the acquisition of
Centennial Foods by The RiceX Company in 1997.
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Margie D. Adelman, was appointed Senior Vice President in January 2005 and Secretary of NutraCea in February
2005. From 2000 to 2004 Ms. Adelman owned and operated Adelman Communications, a full service public relations
firm based in Boca Raton, Florida. From 1994 to 2000 Ms. Adelman was President of TransMedia Group, the largest

public relations firm in Florida. Ms. Adelman holds a doctorate in Naturopathic Medicine from the Clayton School of
Natural Medicine.
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David Bensol, has served as one of our directors since March 2005. Mr. Bensol currently is a management consultant.
Mr. Bensol was the former CEO of Critical Home Care, which recently merged with Arcadia Resources, Inc. (OTC
BB: ACDI). Mr. Bensol was the Executive Vice President and Director of Arcadia Resources from May 2004 until his
resignation from those positions in December 2004. In 2000, Mr. Bensol founded what eventually became Critical
Home Care, through a series of acquisitions and mergers. From 1979 to 1999 Mr. Bensol founded several companies
which became successful companies in the areas of home medical equipment providers, acute care pharmacy
providers and specialty support surface providers. Mr. Bensol became a registered pharmacist in 1979.

Dr. Eliot Drell, has been one of our directors since February 2004. Dr. Drell has been the Chief of Gastroenterology at
Mercy Hospital, Folsom, California since 1984. Dr. Drell’s past medical appointments including acting as a Director of
the Endoscopic unit at Mercy Hospital of Folsom, California and Marshall Hospital; Chief of Medicine at Mercy
Hospital; Member of the Medical Executive Committee at both Mercy Hospital and Marshall Hospital; and Assistant
Professor at U.C. Davis Medical Center. Dr. Drell is an active speaker and lecturer for major pharmaceutical
companies.

James C. Lintzenich, has served as one of our directors since October 2005. Mr. Lintzenich has been a director of The
RiceX Company since June 2003. Mr. Lintzenich has been a management consult since April 2001. From August
2000 to April 2001 Mr. Lintzenich served as President and Chief Operating Officer of SLM Corporation (Sallie Mae),
an educational loan institution. From December 1982 to July 2000, Mr. Lintzenich held various senior management
and financial positions including Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of USA Group, Inc., a guarantor
and servicer of educational loans. Mr. Lintzenich currently serves on the Board of Directors of AdminaStar Federal,
Inc. (a Wellpoint, Inc. subsidiary) and the Lumina Foundation for Education.

Edward L. McMillan, has served as one of our directors since October 2005. Mr. McMillan has been a director of The
RiceX Company since July 2004. From January 2000 to present Mr. McMillan owns and manages McMillan LLC., a
transaction consulting firm which provides strategic consulting services and facilitates mergers and/or acquisitions
predominantly to food and agribusiness industry sectors. From July 2004 to October 2005, Mr. McMillan was a
director of The RiceX Company. From June 1969 to December 1987 he was with Ralston Purina, Inc. and Purina
Mills, Inc. where he held various senior level management positions including marketing, strategic planning, business
development, product research, and business segment management. From January 1988 to March 1996, McMillan
was President and CEO of Purina Mills, Inc. From August 1996 to July 1997, McMillan presented a graduate seminar
at Purdue University. From August 1997 to April 1999 he was with Agri Business Group, Inc. Mr. McMillan
currently serves on the boards of directors of Balchem, Inc. (AMEX:BCP); Durvet, Inc.; Newco Enterprises, Inc.;
CHB LLC.; and Hintzsche, Inc. Mr. McMillan also serves as Chair of the University of Illinois Research Park, LL.C
and the University of Illinois Alumni Association.

Patricia McPeak, founder, has served as one of our directors since December 2001. From December 2001 to October
2005, Ms. McPeak served as our Chief Executive Office. She remains as our Board Chairperson, a position held since
December 2001. She was the founder of NutraStar Technologies Incorporated and was the Chief Executive Officer,
President and a director of NutraStar Technologies Incorporated from its formation in February 2000 until the
reorganization transaction with NutraCea. From May 1989 until February 2000 she was the President and a director of
The RiceX Company, which she co-founded. From 1981 to 1989, Ms. McPeak was an executive officer of Brady
International, Inc. a company engaged in providing stabilized rice bran, which she also co-founded. Ms. McPeak has
extensive experience in the field of protein and ingredient production, having served as an executive in the industry
for 25 years.

Steven W. Saunders, has served as one of our directors since October 2005. He was a director of The RiceX Company

from August 1998 to October 2005. Mr. Saunders has been President of Saunders Construction, Inc., a commercial
construction firm, since February 7, 1991, and President of Warwick Corporation, a business-consulting firm.
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All executive officers serve at the discretion of our board of directors. There are no family relationships between any
of our directors or executive officers.
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Our success, if any, will be dependent to a significant extent upon certain key management employees, including
Messrs. Edson, Crow and Lynch and Mesdames McPeak and Adelman. We have entered into employment agreements
with them as described under caption “Employment Contracts.”

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

All directors are elected annually and serve until the next annual meeting of shareholders or until the election and
qualification of their successors. Each of our directors has served continuously since the date indicated above.
Directors are elected annually at the meeting of the shareholders to serve a term of one year or until the next annual
meeting of shareholders unless they die, resign or are removed. The remaining directors, though less than a quorum,
may fill vacancies occurring on the Board of Directors and persons elected to fill vacancies serve until the next annual
meeting of shareholders unless they die, resign or are removed.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Our Board has established an Audit Committee and a Compensation Committee.

Our Audit Committee consists of Jim Lintzenich, David Bensol and Ed McMillan. Each of Messrs. Lintzenich, Bensol
and McMillan are considered independent directors according to Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASD’s listing standards.
The Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Lintzenich meets the requirements of an “audit committee financial
expert” within the meaning of Item 401 of Regulations S-B. Our Audit Committee facilitates and maintains open
communications among our Board, our Audit Committee, senior management and our independent auditors. Our
Audit Committee also serves as an independent and objective party to monitor our financial reporting process and
internal control system. In addition, our Audit Committee reviews and appraises the efforts of our independent
auditors. Our Audit Committee meets periodically with management and our independent auditors. The Audit
Committee, formed December 15, 2005, held no meetings in fiscal year 2005. Our Board has determined that the
chairman of our Audit Committee, Mr. Lintzenich, meets the Securities and Exchange Commission's definition of
audit committee financial expert. Mr. Lintzenich is “independent”, as such term is used in Item 7(d)(3)(iv) of Schedule
14 A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Our Compensation Committee, consisting of David Bensol, chairman, James C. Lintzenich and Eliot Drell establishes
salary, incentive and other forms of compensation for our Chief Executive Officer, and authorizes equity transactions
for NutraCea. Our Compensation Committee meets periodically with management and our independent auditors. Our
Compensation Committee, formed December 15, 2005, held no meetings in fiscal year 2005.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Based upon a review of our records, we are not aware of any of our officers, directors or beneficial owners of more
than 10% of our securities that failed to timely file one or more reports disclosing beneficial ownership of our
securities as required under Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, during the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2005.

CODE OF ETHICS

We are currently developing an Executive Code of Ethics to be applied to our Chief Executive Officer, President,
Chief Financial Officer, Controller and other members of our management team. The Board of Directors has not
completed a review of the best practices relating to the adoption of Codes of Ethics or acted to adopt the Code of
Ethics proposed by members of management. When adopted, the code will comply with the requirements imposed by
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the rules issued thereunder for codes of ethics applicable to such officers. Our
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Board has reviewed and will continue to evaluate its role and responsibilities with respect to the new legislative and
other requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Also when adopted, the code will be available for
viewing on our Website, www.nutracea.com. Upon request, a copy of the code of ethics will be provided without
charge upon written request to NutraCea, 1261 Hawk’s Flight Court, El Dorado Hills, CA 95762.

Item 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.
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The following Summary Compensation Table shows the aggregate compensation paid or accrued by NutraCea during
fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 to (i) each person who served as NutraCea’s Chief Executive Officer during 2005,
and (ii) the four most highly compensated officers other than the Chief Executive Officer who were serving as
executive officers at the end of 2005 and whose total annual salary and bonus in such year exceeded $100,000, and
(iii) up to two additional individuals for whom disclosures would have been provided in this table but for the fact that
such persons were not serving as executive officers as of the end of fiscal 2005 (collectively with the Chief Executive
Officer, the “Named Executive Officers™).

Summary Compensation Table

for Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Long-Term
Annual Compensation Compensation
Awards
Other Restricted Securities All
Name and annual stock  underlying other
principal position  Year Salary Bonus compensation awards options compensation
Bradley Edson, 2005 $ 62,000 $ 250,000 $ 7,200 35,000 — —
Chief Executive 2004 2,000 — — — 6,000,000 $ 125,000(2)
Officer(1)
Patricia McPeak, 2005 150,000 $ 150,000 (6) —_ —_ —_
Chief Executive 2004 150,000 100,000 85,096(5) 53,200 2,000,000 8,360,000(3)
Officer(4) 2003 150,000 100,000 (6) — — —
Margie D. Adelman, 2005 135,000 78,000 (6) — 2,000,000(8) —
Secretary, Senior
Vice President
Ike E. Lynch 2005  135,000(7) 76,000 (6) —  564,557(9) 41,000(10)
Chief Operating 2004 NA(11)
Officer 2003 NA(11)
Todd C. Crow 2005  148,000(8) 78,000 (6) — 537,678(9) 22,000(10)
Chief Financial 2004 NA(11)
Officer 2003 NA(11)

(1)Mr. Edson became President on December 17, 2004 and Chief Executive Officer on October 4, 2005. In 2004, Mr.
Edson was compensated $72,000 in consulting fees which services were rendered through a firm that he was a
principle.

(2) Consists of $125,000 paid as consulting fees prior to Mr. Edson becoming President.

(3)Represents the market value at time of issuance of 5,500,000 shares of NutraCea common stock issued to Ms.
McPeak for services rendered and cancellation of indebtedness.

4) Ms. McPeak resigned as Chief Executive Officer on October 4, 2005.
4) Includes $73,096 paid by NutraCea to purchase an automobile for Ms. McPeak.
(6) Other Annual Compensation is less than 10% of Salary.

(7)Represents total salary paid during 2005, nine months paid by RiceX, three months paid by NutraCea, the

combined company.
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(8)Represents two warrants, one to purchase 1,000,000 shares of NutraCea’s common stock, valued at $130,000, at an

37

exercise price of $0.30 per share were issued and vest 500,000 at signing of the employment agreement and
500,000 on January 25, 2006, and one warrants to purchase 1,000,000 shares of NutraCea’s common stock at an
exercise price of $0.30 per share were also issued and will vest upon the achievement of NutraCea obtaining
“Gross Sales over $25,000,000” and NutraCea reports a positive EBITDA for the period. All warrants expire in ten
years from the date of issuance.

79



Edgar Filing: PEDEVCO CORP - Form 8-K

Index

(9)Represents the options assumed by NutraCea as a result of the Merger. In 2005 Mr. Lynch was issued an option to
purchase 735,111 shares of RiceX common stock, exchanged for an option to purchase 564,557 shares of
NutraCea common stock. In 2005 Mr. Crow was issued an option to purchase 700,111 shares of RiceX common
stock, exchanged for an option to purchase 537,678 shares of NutraCea common stock.

(10)Represents payment for accrued vacation payments from RiceX in accordance with the merger document and

contributions to 401-K program.

(11)NA-Table does not include compensation paid to the individual as an officer of RiceX prior to the merger with

NutraCea in 2005.

OPTION ACTIVITY IN 2005 TO EXECUTIVES

The following table sets forth for each of the Named Executive Officers certain information concerning warrants and
stock options activity granted during 2005.

OPTION/SAR GRANTS IN LAST FISCAL YEAR

(Individual Grants)
Percent of
Number of Total
Securities Options/SARs
Underlying Granted to Exercise Market
Options/SARs Employees in Price Price Expiration
Name Granted (#) Fiscal Year ($/Sh) ($/Sh) Date
Margie D. Adelman(1) 2,000,000 91% $ 0.30 $ 0.43 1/23/2015
Ike E. Lynch(2) 564,557 42% $ 0.30 $ 0.18 3/30/2015
Todd C. Crow(3) 537,678 40% $ 0.30 $ 0.18 3/30/2015

(1) Warrants were granted as required by Ms. Adelman’s employment contract. One million shares of NutraCea’s
common stock, valued at $130,000, at an exercise price of $0.30 per share were issued and vest 500,000 at signing
of the employment agreement and 500,000 on January 25, 2006, and one warrant to purchase 1,000,000 shares of
NutraCea’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.30 per share were also issued and will vest upon the
achievement of NutraCea obtaining “Gross Sales over $25,000,000” and NutraCea reports a positive EBITDA for
the period. All warrants expire ten years from the date of issuance.

(2)Options were granted to Mr. Lynch. In 2005 Mr. Lynch was issued an option to purchase 735,111 shares of RiceX
common stock, exchanged for an option to purchase 564,557 shares of NutraCea common stock. One half of the
option shares were fully vested and exercisable at $0.30 per share upon date of grant, or March 31, 2005. The
remaining option shares vest and become exercisable proportionately over three years. On the third anniversary of
the grant date, March 31, 2008, all option shares are vested and exercisable at $0.30 per share.

(3)Options were granted to Mr. Crow. In 2005 Mr. Crow was issued an option to purchase 700,111 shares of RiceX
common stock, exchanged for an option to purchase 537,678 shares of NutraCea common stock. One half of the
option shares were fully vested and exercisable at $0.30 per share upon date of grant, or March 31, 2005. The
remaining option shares vest and become exercisable proportionately over three years. On the third anniversary of
the grant date, March 31, 2008, all option shares are vested and exercisable at $0.30 per share.

STOCK OPTION EXERCISES AND YEAR-END VALUE TABLE

The table below reflects the number of shares covered by both exercisable and non-exercisable stock options as of
December 31, 2005 for the Named Executive Officers. Values for “in-the-money” options represent the position spread
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between the exercise price of existing options and the market value for our common stock on December 31, 2005.

AGGREGATE OPTION/SAR EXERCISES IN LAST FISCAL YEAR AND FISCAL YEAR-END
OPTION/SAR VALUES
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Shares Value Number of Value of Unexercised
Acquired on Realized Unexercised Options In-the-Money Options
Name Exercise (#) ® Exercisable = Unexercisable Exercisable = Unexercisable
None
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Prior to the Merger with RiceX and the formation of the Board of Directors for our combined Company, effective
October 4, 2005, NutraCea provided compensation to its directors for serving in such capacity in the form of grants of
common stock from our 2003 Stock Compensation Plan. Upon joining the Board, NutraCea provides a one time
issuance of 35,000 shares of restricted common stock to each board member, whether an employee or non-employee,
for the first year of service on our Board plus reimbursement of expenses. This compensation program was replaced
with a new compensation program, effective April 1, 2006, see below.

Common Stock Grants to Directors in the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Name Shares Acquired Value Realized
Bradley D. Edson 35,000 $14,000
David Bensol 35,000 $16,100

Eliot Drell, MD - -
James C. Lintzenich - -
ES

Edward L. McMillan - -
ES

Patricia McPeak - -
Steven Saunders * - -
Ernie Bodai, MD *#* - -

* Appointed to the Board October 4, 2005.
*#* Mr. Bodai resigned as Director on September 28, 2005.

In a Board of Directors meeting held January 11, 2006 a new Director compensation program, subject to our cash flow
condition, was adopted to be effective April 1, 2006 for independent Board members. In the second quarter of 2006
each independent Board member will receive $12,000 annual cash retainer, $1,000 to participate in each Board
meeting, $500 if it’s a telephonic meeting, $2,000 per year to serve on the Audit and Compensation Committee with an
additional $1,000 to serve as a committee chairman. Each non-employee Director will also receive a warrant to
purchases 35,000 shares of our common stock per year.

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

On December 17, 2004, NutraCea entered into an employment agreement that expires December 31, 2007 with its
current President and Chief Executive Officer, Bradley D. Edson, pursuant to which NutraCea is to pay Mr. Edson a
base salary of $50,000 in year one; a base salary of $150,000 in year two; and a base salary of $250,000 in year three.
The agreement also provides that Mr. Edson is entitled to an annual incentive bonus based upon performance and to
be provided a car allowance of $600 per month. The incentive bonus is payable annually within 10 days of the
completion of NutraCea’s annual independent audit. The bonus is one percent of NutraCea’s “Gross Sales over $25,
000,000,” but only if NutraCea reports a positive EBITDA for the period. The bonus amount is limited to a maximum
of $750,000 in any calendar year. In addition, Mr. Edson was issued warrants to purchase 6,000,000 shares of
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NutraCea’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.30 per share. The warrants are immediately exercisable and expire
ten years from the date of issuance.

On January 25, 2005, NutraCea entered into a three year employment agreement with Margie D. Adelman, NutraCea’s
Senior Vice President and Secretary, pursuant to which NutraCea is to pay Ms. Adelman a base salary of $150,000 per
year. The agreement also provides that Ms. Adelman is entitled to a one-time initial bonus of $25,000 and will be
eligible for future incentive bonuses based solely on the discretion of NutraCea’s Chief Executive Officer or President
and the approval of NutraCea’s Compensation Committee. Ms. Adelman was issued a warrant to purchase 1,000,000
shares of NutraCea’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.30 per share, 500,000 shares of which vested upon
signing and 500,000 shares of which will vest on January 25, 2006, subject to forfeiture under certain terms and
conditions. In addition, Ms Adelman was issued warrants to purchase 1,000,000 shares of NutraCea’s common stock at
an exercise price of $0.30 that will vest upon the achievement of NutraCea obtaining “Gross Sales over $25,000,000”
and NutraCea reporting a positive EBITDA for the period. All warrants expire ten years from the date of issuance. On
February 26, 2006, the agreement was modified to include a car allowance of $600 per month, a cost of living increase
for the balance of the term of her agreement, and an additional week of paid vacation per calendar year.
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In September 2005, we entered into a First Amendment to employment agreement with Todd C. Crow, pursuant to
which we assumed the employment agreement between Mr. Crow and The RiceX Company. The employment
agreement, as amended, provides that Mr. Crow will serve as Chief Financial Officer of NutraCea and the RiceX
Company. Mr. Crow’s employment agreement, as amended, provides that Mr. Crow will receive an annual base salary
of $150,000, which salary will be reviewed annually and be adjusted to compensate for cost of living adjustments in
the Sacramento metropolitan area. The agreement terminates on October 4, 2008. The term will be automatically
extended for an additional one-year term unless either party delivers notice of election not to extend the employment
at least 90 days prior to the expiration of the initial term. Mr. Crow's employment may be terminated prior to the
expiration of the agreement by the mutual written agreement of the parties or in the event of Mr. Crow's disability. For
the purposes of the employment agreement, "disability" means Mr. Crow's inability, due to physical or mental
impairment, to perform his duties and obligations, despite reasonable accommodation by us, for a period exceeding
three months. Mr. Crow's employment may also terminated in the event of his death, notice by us of termination for
cause (as defined in the agreement), or written notice by us of termination without cause, upon fourteen (14) days
notice. Mr. Crow is entitled to compensation for early termination. If Mr. Crow is terminated without cause, we will
pay to Mr. Crow, as liquidated damages and in lieu of any and all other claims which Mr. Crow may have against us,
the amount equal to Mr. Crow's monthly base salary multiplied by the number of months remaining in the term of this
agreement, or a payment amount equal to one year of Mr. Crow's base salary, whichever is greater. If Mr. Crow is
terminated as the result of a change in control transaction (as defined in the employment agreement, as amended) and
Mr. Crow is not employed in the same capacity or being paid the same base salary as he was employed with us, then
Mr. Crow will receive a severance payment equal to two (2) years of Mr. Crow’s Base Salary, or the balance remaining
to be paid under the terms of the agreement, whichever is greater.

In September 2005, we entered into a First Amendment to employment agreement with Ike E. Lynch, pursuant to
which we assumed the employment agreement between Mr. Lynch and The RiceX Company. The employment
agreement, as amended, provides that Mr. Lynch will serve as Chief Operating Officer of NutraCea, The RiceX
Company and RiceX Nutrients, Inc., a subsidiary of The RiceX Company. The employment agreement, as amended,
provides that Mr. Lynch will receive an annual base salary of $150,000, which salary will be reviewed annually and
be adjusted to compensate for cost of living adjustments in the Sacramento metropolitan area. The agreement
terminates on October 4, 2008. The term will be automatically extended for an additional one-year term unless either
party delivers notice of election not to extend the employment at least 90 days prior to the expiration of the initial
term. Mr. Lynch's employment may be terminated prior to the expiration of the agreement by the mutual written
agreement of the parties or in the event of Mr. Lynch's disability. For the purposes of the employment agreement,
"disability" means Mr. Lynch's inability, due to physical or mental impairment, to perform his duties and obligations,
despite reasonable accommodation by us, for a period exceeding three months. Mr. Lynch's employment may also
terminated in the event of his death, notice by us of termination for cause (as defined in the agreement), or written
notice by us of termination without cause, upon fourteen (14) days notice. Mr. Lynch is entitled to compensation for
early termination. If Mr. Lynch is terminated without cause, we will pay to Mr. Lynch, as liquidated damages and in
lieu of any and all other claims which Mr. Lynch may have against us, the amount equal to Mr. Lynch's monthly base
salary multiplied by the number of months remaining in the term of this agreement, or a payment amount equal to one
year of Mr. Lynch's base salary, whichever is greater. If Mr. Lynch is terminated as the result of a change in control
transaction (as defined in the employment agreement, as amended) and Mr. Lynch is not employed in the same
capacity or being paid the same base salary as he was employed with us, then Mr. Lynch will receive a severance
payment equal to one hundred eighty thousand dollars ($180,000).

On December 10, 2004, Patricia McPeak entered into an employment agreement with us. The employment agreement
has a term of three years and provides that Ms. McPeak will be paid a base salary of $150,000 per year for the first
two years of the term and $250,000 for the third year of the term. The agreement also provides that Ms. McPeak is
entitled to an annual incentive bonus based upon performance. The incentive bonus is payable annually within 10 days
of the completion of NutraCea’s annual independent audit. The bonus is one percent of our “Gross Sales over
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$25,000,000,” but only if we report a positive EBITDA for the period. The bonus amount is limited to a maximum of
$750,000 in any calendar year. In addition, we issued to Ms. McPeak a warrant to purchase 2,000,000 shares of our
common stock at an exercise price of $0.30 per share. The warrant is immediately exercisable and expires ten years
from the date of issuance. The warrant is subject to a lock-up agreement through December 31, 2007.
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LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION MATTERS

NutraCea’s Articles of Incorporation provide that it will indemnify its officers and directors, employees and agents and
former officers, directors, employees and agents unless their conduct is finally adjudged as involving intentional
misconduct, fraud or a knowing violation of the law and were material to the cause of action. This indemnification
includes expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines, and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably
incurred by these individuals in connection with such action, suit, or proceeding, including any appeal thereof, subject
to the qualifications contained in California law as it now exists. Expenses (including attorneys’ fees) incurred in
defending a civil or criminal action, suit, or proceeding will be paid by NutraCea in advance of the final disposition of
such action, suit, or proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the director, officer, employee or
agent to repay such amount, unless it shall ultimately be determined that he or she is entitled to be indemnified by
NutraCea as authorized in the Articles of Incorporation. This indemnification will continue as to a person who has
ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent, and will benefit their heirs, executors, and administrators. These
indemnification rights are not deemed exclusive of any other rights to which any such person may otherwise be
entitled apart from the Articles of Incorporation. California law generally provides that a corporation shall have the
power to indemnify persons if they acted in good faith in a manner reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the
best interests of NutraCea and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe
the conduct was unlawful. In the event any such person is judged liable for negligence or misconduct, this
indemnification will apply only if approved by the court in which the action was pending. Any other indemnification
shall be made only after the determination by NutraCea’s board of directors (excluding any directors who were party to
such action), by independent legal counsel in a written opinion, or by a majority vote of shareholders (excluding any
shareholders who were parties to such action) to provide such indemnification.

NutraCea carries Officers and Directors insurance. The aggregate limit of liability for the policy period (inclusive of
costs of defense) is $5,000,000. The policy period ends on October 1, 2006.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers and
controlling persons of NutraCea pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, NutraCea has been advised that in
the opinion of the SEC such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is,
therefore, unenforceable.

Item 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information regarding beneficial ownership of our common stock and Series B
preferred stock as of March 3, 2006, or the Reference date by (i) each person or entity who is known by us to own
beneficially more than 5% of the outstanding shares of that class of our stock, (ii) each of our directors, (iii) each of
the Named Executive Officers, and (iv) all directors and executive officers as a group. As of the Reference Date,
March 3, 2006 there were 68,350,622 shares of our common stock outstanding and unexercised warrants and options
representing 38,283,359 shares. We have authorized Series A preferred stock, but none of these shares are
outstanding. We also have authorized 20,000,000 shares convertible Series B preferred stock of which 7,250 shares
are outstanding and convertible to 14,500,000 of our common stock as of March 3, 2006.

The table is based on information provided to us or filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) by our
directors, executive officers and principal shareholders. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the
rules of the SEC, and includes voting and investment power with respect to shares. Shares of common stock issuable
upon conversion of Series B Preferred Stock or issuable upon exercise of options and warrants that are currently
exercisable or are exercisable within 60 days after March 3, 2006, are deemed outstanding for purposes of computing
the percentage ownership of the person holding such options or warrants, but are not deemed outstanding for
computing the percentage of any other shareholder in the first four columns. The shares of common stock issuable
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upon conversion of Series B Preferred Stock are deemed outstanding for the purposes of computing the percentage
ownership of all persons in the last two columns. Unless otherwise indicated, the address for each shareholder listed in
the following table is c/o NutraCea, 1261 Hawk’s Flight Court, El Dorado Hills, CA 95762.
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Shares of Common Stock
Shares of Series B Beneficially Owned
Shares of Common Stock Preferred (Assuming Preferred
Beneficially Owned Stock Beneficially Owned Stock Conversion)
Name and Address
of Beneficial Number Percentage Number Percentage Number Percentage
Owner e)) €)) (2) (2) 3 3
Patricia McPeak(4) 14,061,168 19.46 % - * % 14,061,168 16.21 %
Leonardo, L.P.(5) 7,500,000 9.89 2,500 34.48 7,500,000 8.30
245 Park Avenue,
26t Floor
New York, NY
10167
Bradley D. Edson(6) 6,155,000 8.28 - = 6,155,000 6.93
Monsanto 5,504,552 8.05 * 5,504,552 6.64
800 N. Lindbergh
St. Louis, MO
63167 -
Funds related to 5,250,000 7.13 1,750 24.14 5,250,000
Pequot Capital
Management, Inc.(7)
500 Myala Farm
Road
Westport, CT 06880 5.96
The Pinnacle Fund, 3,000,000 4.20 1,000 13.79 3,000,000 3.49
L.P.(8)
James C. 2,883,019 4.13 - * 2,883,019 3.42
Lintzenich(9)
Funds related to 1,750,000 2.50 500 6.90 1,750,000 2.07
Enable Partners(10)
One Ferry Building,
Suite 255
San Francisco, CA
94111
Funds related to 2,100,000 2.98 700 9.66 2,100,000 2.47
Xerion Partners
Equity(11)
Ike E. Lynch(12) 1,663,983 2.39 - * 1,663,983 1.98
Todd C. Crow(12) 1,393,416 2.00 - * 1,393,416 1.65
Margie D. 1,059,442 1.53 - * 1,059,442 1.26
Adelman(12)
Eliot Drell(13) 1,048,335 1.52 - = 1,048,335 1.26
1,047,194 1.52 - * 1,047,194 1.26
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Steven W.

Saunders(14)

Edward L. 171,337
McMillan(15)

David Bensol 35,000

All directors and

executive officers as

a group (10

persons)(16) 29,517,894
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171,337

35,000

29,517,894

29.78
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* less than 1%

(1) Applicable percentage of ownership is based on 68,350,622 shares of our common stock outstanding as of March
3, 2006, together with applicable options and warrants for such shareholder exercisable within 60 days of March 3,

2006.

(2) Applicable percentage of ownership is based on 7,400 shares of Series B preferred stock outstanding as of March
3, 2006.

(3) Applicable percentage of ownership is based on 68,350,622 shares of our capital stock outstanding as of March 3,
2006, 14,800,000 shares of our capital stock issuable upon conversion of all of the Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock outstanding as of March 3, 2006, together with applicable options or warrants for such shareholder
exercisable within 60 days of March 3, 2006.

(4)Includes 8,692,015 shares of common stock and 2,002,882 shares issuable upon the exercise of options and
warrants. Also includes 1,311,900 shares owned and 1,900,773 shares issuable upon exercise of options held by
reporting person’s spouse. Also includes 153,598 shares held by a trust controlled by the reporting person and her
spouse. The reporting person disclaims beneficial ownership with regard to all shares owned by her spouse.

(5)Includes 2,500,000 shares issuable upon exercise of warrants and 5,000,000 shares issuable upon conversion of
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock. Leonardo Capital Management Inc. (“LCMI”) is the sole general partner of
Leonardo, L.P. Angelo, Gordon & Co., L.P. (“Angelo, Gordon”) is the sole director of LCMI. John M. Angelo and
Michael L. Gordon are the principal executive officers of Angelo, Gordon. Each of Angelo, Gordon and Messrs.
Angelo and Gordon disclaim beneficial ownership of the securities held by Leonardo, L.P.

(6) Includes 155,000 shares of common stock and 6,000,000 shares issuable upon exercise of warrants.

(7)Securities beneficially owned by Pequot Capital Management, Inc. represent Shares of common stock underlying
Series B convertible preferred, of which 2,062,000 shares are held of record by Pequot Scout Fund, L.P. and
1,438,000 shares are held of record by Pequot Mariner Master Fund, L.P. In addition, represents shares of common
stock underlying warrants immediately exercisable of which 1,031,000 shares are held of record by Pequot Scout
Fund, L.P. and 719,000 shares are held of record by Pequot Mariner Master Fund, L.P. Pequot Capital
Management, Inc., which is the Investment Manager/Advisor to the above named funds exercises sole dispositive,
investment and voting power for all the shares. Arther J. Samberg is the sole shareholder of Pequot Capital
Management, Inc. and disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares except for his pecuniary interest.

(8)Securities beneficially owned by The Pinnacle Fund, L.P. represent 2,000,000 shares of common stock underlying
Series B convertible preferred stock and 1,000,000 shares of common stock underlying warrants immediately
exercisable. Pinnacle Advisers, L.P., which is the investment advisor and general partner of The Pinnacle Fund,
L.P., has sole dispositive, investment and voting power for all the shares. Pinnacle Fund Management, L.L.C is the
general partner of Pinnacle Advisors, L.P. Barry M. Kitt is the sole member of Pinnacle Fund Management, L.L.C.
and disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares except for his pecuniary interest. The address for The Pinnacle
Fund, L.P. is 4965 Preston Park Blvd., Suite 240, Plano, Texas 75093.
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(9)Includes 25,000 shares of common stock and 115,197 shares issuable upon exercise of options held by the
reporting person. Also includes 1,371,411 shares of common stock and an additional 1,371,411 shares of common
stock issuable upon exercise of a warrant held by Intermark Group Holdings, LLC of which the filing person is the
owner.

(10) Securities beneficially owned by Enable Partners represent shares of common stock underlying Series B
convertible preferred stock, of which 800,000 shares are held of record by Enable Growth Partners LP and
200,000 shares are held of record by Enable Opportunity Partners LP. In addition, represents shares of common
stock underlying warrants immediately exercisable of which 600,000 shares are hold of record by Enable Growth
Partners LP and 150,000 shares are held of record by Enable Opportunity Partners LP. The natural person who
has voting and dispositive power for the shares held by both funds named above is Mitch Levine, who is
Managing Partner of both funds. Mr. Levine disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares except for his pecuniary
interest.

(11)Securities beneficially owned by Xerion Partners Equity represent shares of common stock underlying Series B
convertible preferred stock, of which 700,000 shares are held of record by Xerion Partners I LLC and 700,000
shares are held of record by Xerion Partners Il Master Fund Limited. In addition, represents shares of common
stock underlying warrants immediately exercisable of which 350,000 shares are held of record by Xerion Partners
I LLC and 350,000 shares are hold of record by Xerion Partners I Master Fund Limited. The natural persons who
have voting and dispositive power for the shares held by Xerion Partners I LLC are S. Donald Sussman and
Daniel J. Arbess. Messrs. Sussman and Arbess disclaim beneficial ownership of the shares except for their
pecuniary interests. The natural person who has voting and dispositive power for the shares held by Xerion
Partners II Master Fund Limited is Daniel J. Arbess. Mr. Arbess disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares
except for his pecuniary interest. The address for Xerion Partners I LLC is Two American Lane, Greenwich,
Connecticut 06836. The address for Xerion Partners II Master Fund Limited is 450 Park Avenue, New York, New
York 10022.

(12)Includes options or warrants for the purchase of common stock as follows: Ike E. Lynch, 1,377,371 (also includes
11,065 shares of common stock and 95,228 options for the purchase of common stock held by Mr. Lynch’s wife to
which Mr. Lynch disclaims beneficial ownership); Todd C. Crow, 1,383,716; Margie D. Adelman, 1,002,500.

(13)Includes 145,000 shares of common stock and 252,141 shares issuable upon exercise of options or warrants held
by reporting person. Also includes 304,282 shares owned and 314,987 shares issuable upon exercise of options or
warrants held by by Drell-Pecha Partnership of which the reporting person is a partner. Also includes 31,925
shares of common stock jointly held by reporting person and spouse.

(14) Includes 640,002 shares of common stock and 407,192 shares issuable upon exercise of options and warrants.

(15)Includes 76,798 shares issuable upon exercise of options held by reporting person. Also included 17,740 shares of
common stock and 76,799 shares issuable upon exercise of warrants jointly held by reporting person and spouse.

(16) Includes an aggregate of 16,270,702 shares issuable upon exercise of options and warrants.
2003 STOCK COMPENSATION PLAN

Our Board of Directors adopted the 2003 Stock Compensation Plan, or the 2003 Plan, on October 31, 2003. Under the
terms of the 2003 Plan, we may grant up to 10,000,000 warrants, options, restricted common or preferred stock, or
unrestricted common or preferred stock to officers, directors, employees or consultants providing services to NutraCea
on such terms as are determined by our board of directors. The 2003 Plan provides that our board of directors may
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also permit officers, directors, employees or consultants to have their bonuses and/or consulting fees payable in
warrants, restricted common stock, unrestricted common stock and other awards, or any combination thereof. As of
December 31, 2005, a total of 33,792 shares are available for future grants. Our Board administers the 2003 Plan.
Under the 2003 Plan, options vest not less than 20% per year and have 10-year terms (except with respect to 10%
stockholders which have five-year terms). If we sell substantially all of our assets, are a party to a merger or
consolidation in which we are not the surviving corporation, then we have the right to accelerate unvested options and
will give the option holder written notice of the exercisability and specify a time period in which the option may be
exercised. All options will terminate in their entirety to the extent not exercised on or prior to the date specified in the
written notice unless an agreement governing any change of control provides otherwise. In addition, we have granted
options to certain officers, directors and employees outside of the 2003 Plan.
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SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

Plan Category Number of securities |Weighted-average Number of Number of securities
to be issued upon exercise price of shares issued remaining available
exercise of outstanding options, for future issuance
outstanding options, [warrants and rights under equity
warrants and rights compensation plans

(excluding securities
reflected in column

Equity compensation
plans approved by -0- N/A 9,966,208 33,792
security holders

Equity compensation

plans not approved by 38,283,359 $0.55 -0- 38,283,359
security holders

Total 38,283,359 $0.55 9,966,208 38,317,151
Item 12. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS.

Related Parties Transactions

In November 2004, the Board of Directors resolved to purchase a new automobile valued at $73,096 for use by
Patricia McPeak, the former Chief Executive Officer. Ms. McPeak waived a car allowance in exchange for use of the
automobile.

In 2004, two directors received 100,000 shares of common stock each, to serve as the Chairman of the Medical
Advisory Board and the Corporate Medical Director.

Also, in 2004, a director-owned partnership received 300,000 shares of common stock and options to purchase
300,000 shares of common stock, exercisable at $1.00, with 100,000 options vesting immediately and the remaining
200,000 options vesting at 50,000 options per year.

In the first quarter of 2005, 70,000 shares of common stock, valued at $30,100, were issued to two directors as
Director compensation. See Part III, Item 10 - DIRECTOR COMPENSATION.

In April 2005, a direct response marketing company agreed to compensate NutraCea’s former Chief Executive Officer,
Patricia McPeak, whereby she will receive a royalty per unit sold resulting from infomercials that will demonstrate
specific products of NutraCea. Pursuant to this agreement, Ms. McPeak should have earned approximately $270,000
in 2005 from this direct marketing company. The aggreement provides for royalty payments to be made over the next
two years by the direct response marketing company and are not the obligations of NutraCea.

Private Placement Transaction
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In October 2005, we sold 7,850 shares of our Series B preferred stock at a price of $1,000.00 per share, and warrants
to purchase an aggregate of 7,850,000 shares of our common stock with an exercise price of $0.70 per share, to a
small number of sophisticated investors in private placement transactions. Our Series B preferred stock can be
converted to shares of our common stock at a conversion rate of 2,000 shares of common stock for each share of
Series B preferred Stock. Gross proceeds from the offering were approximately $7.85 million. Some of these investors
included Leonardo, L.P., funds related to Pequot Capital Management, Inc., The Pinnacle Fund, L.P., funds related to
Enable Partners, and funds related to Xerion Partners, which purchased 2,500, 1,750, 1,000, 750 and 700 shares of
Series B preferred stock, respectively. Subsequent to December 31, 2005 funds related to Enable Partners, 250 shares
of Series B preferred Stock was converted to 500,000 shares of common stock and sold pursuant to our Form SB-2
Registration Statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 7, 2006. Information
concerning the beneficial ownership of our securities by such persons is set forth above under the heading “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.”

We believe that the transactions set forth above were made on terms no less favorable to us than could have been
obtained from unaffiliated third parties. We intend that all future transactions, including loans, between our officers,
directors, principal stockholders and their affiliates, and us be approved by a majority of our Board, including a
majority of the independent and disinterested outside directors who serve on our Board. In addition, we intend that all
such transactions be on terms no less favorable to us than could be obtained from unaffiliated third parties.

Item 13. EXHIBITS
2.01(1) Plan and Agreement of Exchange.
2..02(2) Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization, dated as of April 4, 2005, by and among the

NutraCea, The RiceX Company and Red Acquisition Corporation.

3.01(3) Restated and Amended Articles of Incorporation as filed with the Secretary of State of California on
December 13, 2001.

3.01.1 Certificate of Amendment of Articles of Incorporation as filed with the Secretary of State of
California on August 4, 2003.

3.02(4) Certificate of Amendment of Articles of Incorporation as filed with the Secretary of State of
California on October 31, 2003.

3.03(20) Certificate of Amendment of Articles of Incorporation as filed with the Secretary of State of
California on September 29, 2005

3.04(5) Certificate of Designation of the Rights, Preferences, and Privileges of the Series A Preferred Stock
as filed with the Secretary of State of California on December 13, 2001.

3.05(6) Certificate of Determination, Preferences and Rights of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock as filed
with the Secretary of State of California on October 4, 2005.

3.06(20) Bylaws of NutraCea, as amended effective October 4, 2005.
4.01(6) Form of warrant issued to subscribers in connection with NutraCea’s October 2005 private
placement.
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10.05(20)
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NutraCea 2003 Stock Compensation Plan
NutraCea 2005 Equity Incentive Plan

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated September 28, 2005, by and among NutraCea and the
investors named therein.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated September 28, 2005, by and among NutraCea and the
investors named therein.

Employment Agreement between NutraCea and Patricia McPeak.
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10.25(11)

10.26(11)
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Reserved

Executive Employment Agreement between NutraCea and Bradley D. Edson.
Executive Employment Agreement between NutraCea and Margie D. Adelman.
Executive Employment Agreement between The RiceX Company and Todd C. Crow.

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between NutraCea, Todd C. Crow and The RiceX
Company.

Executive Employment Agreement between The RiceX Company and Ike E. Lynch.

Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between NutraCea, Ike E. Lynch and The RiceX
Company.

Reserved

Form of Affiliate Agreement between certain affiliates of RiceX and NutraCea dated April 4, 2005
W.F. Young Distribution Agreement.

W.F. Young Technology Agreement.

Stock Purchase Agreement between NutraCea and Langley Park Investments PLC

Production Facility Development and Rice Bran Supply and Purchase Agreement dated September
13, 2005 between NutraCea and Food Trading Company Dominicana, S.A.

Assignment dated April 12, 2005 from W.F. Young, Inc. to NutraCea
Distribution Agreement dated April 12, 2005 between W.F. Young, Inc. and NutraCea
Manufacturing Agreement dated April 12, 2005 between W.F. Young, Inc. and NutraCea

Supply and Distribution Agreement dated November 4, 2005 between NutraCea and T. Geddes
Grant.

Commercial Lease and Deposit Receipt between Roebbelen Land Company and The RiceX
Company dated December 23, 1991.

First Amendment of Lease between Roebbelen Land Company and The RiceX Company dated
January 19, 1994.

Second Amendment of Lease between Roebbelen Land Company and The RiceX Company dated
July 11, 1996.

Third Amendment of Lease Agreement between Roebbelen Land Company and The RiceX
Company dated February 1, 1998.
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Lease Agreement between Roebbelen Land Company and The RiceX Company dated July 11, 1996.

First Amendment of Lease between Roebbelen Land Company and The RiceX Company dated
September 1996.

Second Amendment of Lease Agreement between Roebbelen Land Company and The RiceX
Company dated February 1, 1998.

Agreement on Exclusive Distribution in Europe between The RiceX Company and KREGLINGER
EUROPE N.V. dated October 1, 2002.

Stabilized Rice Bran Processing, Sales, and Marketing Agreement between Farmers' Rice
Cooperative and The RiceX Company dated May 1, 2002.

The RiceX Company 1997 Stock Option Plan

Form of Directors Stock Option Agreement for The RiceX Company.
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Form of Non-statutory Stock Option Agreement not issued under The RiceX Company 1997 Stock
Option Plan, governing options granted to The RiceX Company employees.

Form of non-statutory Stock Option Agreement issued under The RiceX Company 1997 Stock
Option Plan between The RiceX Company and The RiceX Company employees dated October 1,
1999.

Form of non-statutory Stock Option Agreement issued under The RiceX Company 1997 Stock
Option Plan between The RiceX Company and Ike Lynch dated November 1, 1999. Identical
Agreements with Daniel McPeak, Jr. and Todd C. Crow.

Form of Board Member Non-statutory Stock Option Agreement issued under The RiceX Company
1997 Stock Option Plan between The RiceX Company and the Board Members of the RiceX
Company dated February 22, 2001, September 23 and 29, 2001.

Form of Non-statutory Stock Option Agreement issued under The RiceX Company 1997 Stock
Option Plan between The RiceX Company and employees dated January 2, 2000.

Form of Non-statutory Stock Option Agreement issued September 23, 2002 between The RiceX
Company and the members of The RiceX Company’s Board of Directors.

Form of Non-statutory Stock Option Agreement issued July 1, 2004 between The RiceX Company
and Edward McMillan.

Form of Warrant agreement between The RiceX Company and The RiceX Company’s Global
Advisory Board dated October 4, 2004.

Form of Non-statutory Stock Option Agreement issued October 18, 2004 between The RiceX
Company and two members of The RiceX Company Board Directors.

Form of Non-statutory Stock Option Agreement issued under the 1997 Stock Option Plan between
The RiceX Company and certain non-employee RiceX Directors dated March 31, 2005.

Form of Non-statutory Stock Option Agreement issued under the 1997 Stock Option Plan between
The RiceX Company and certain employees of RiceX dated March 31, 2005.

Form of Option Assumption Agreement between NutraCea and Option Holders relating to assumed
Options granted under The RiceX Company 1997 Stock Option Plan.

Form of Option Assumption Agreement between NutraCea and Option Holders relating to assumed
non-plan RiceX Options.

Form of Option Assumption Agreement between NutraCea and former Directors of The RiceX
Company.

Form of Resale Restriction Agreement entered into between NutraCea and each of Todd C. Crow
and Ike E. Lynch.
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Form of Resale Restriction Agreement entered into between NutraCea and each of James
Lintzenich, Edward McMillan and Steven Saunders.

Form of Resale Restriction Agreement entered into between NutraCea and each of Bradley Edson,
Patricia McPeak, Margie Adelman, Eliot Drell and David Bensol.

List of subsidiaries.

Letter on change in certifying accountants dated March 13, 2002
Updated letter on change in certifying accountants dated March 25, 2002
Letter on change in certifying accountants dated March 21, 2002

Letter on change in certifying accountants dated October 25, 2003

List of subsidiaries.

Certification by CEO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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31.2 Certification by CEO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 Certification by CEO pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2 Certification by CFO pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
+ Confidential treatment granted as to certain portions.

(1)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
November 19, 2001.
(2)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
April 4, 2005.
(3)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB, filed
on April 16, 2002.
(4)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB,
filed on November 19, 2003.
(5)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2,
filed on June 4, 2002.
(6)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
October 4, 2005.
(7)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8,
filed on November 18, 2003.
(8)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-KSB, filed
on March 31, 2005.
(9)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on The RiceX Company’s Report on Form 8-K, filed
on April 4, 2005.
(10)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on
September 14, 2004.
(11)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on The RiceX Company’s Registration Statement No.
000-24285, filed on May 18, 1998.
(12)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on The RiceX Company’s Report on Form 10-KSB,
filed on March 31, 2003.
(13)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on The RiceX Company’s Report on Form 10-QSB,
filed on August 12, 2002.
(14)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on The RiceX Company’s Registration Statement
Number Statement No. 000-24285, filed on May 18, 1998.
(15)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on The RiceX Company’s Report on Form 10-KSB,
filed on March 30, 2000.
(16)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on The RiceX Company’s Report on Form 10-QSB,
filed on August 10, 2001.
(17)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on The RiceX Company’s Report on Form 10-QSB,
filed on November 15, 2003.
(18)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on The RiceX Company’s Report on Form 10-KSB,
filed on March 30, 2005.
(19)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on The RiceX Company’s Report on Form 10-QSB,
filed on May 16, 2005.
(20) incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on Form 10-KSB/A filed November 18, 2005.
(21) incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on Form 8-K filed on March 14, 2002.
(22) incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on Form 8-K/A filed on March 15, 2002.
(23) incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on Form 8-K/A filed on November 7, 2003.
(24)incorporated herein by reference to exhibits previously filed on Registration Statement on Form SB-2 filed on
November 21, 2005.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
Audit Fees

The aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered by NutraCea’s independent public accountants for the
audit of NutraCea’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 and for the review of
the financial statements included in NutraCea’s Quarterly Reports on Form 10-QSB for those fiscal years were
approximately $46,000and $42,000, respectively.

Audit-Related Fees

There were no fees billed for other audit-related services rendered by NutraCea’s independent public accountants for
the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.

Tax Fees

The aggregate fees billed for tax services rendered by NutraCea’s independent public accountants for the fiscal years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 were $0 and $2,970, respectively.

All Other Fees

The aggregate of all other fees billed for services rendered by NutraCea’s independent public accountant for the fiscal
years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 amounted to $8,000 and $0, respectively. These fees related to the
preparation and review of a registration statement and general accounting assistance.

As stated elsewhere in this report, NutraCea did not have a separate Audit Committee during fiscal year 2005. All of
the functions of the Audit Committee were performed by the Board of Directors as a whole, including the review and
authorization of all non-audit fees incurred by NutraCea. All of the non-audit fees incurred by NutraCea were
authorized by the Board of Directors.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies

Rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission in order to implement requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002 require public company audit committees to pre-approve audit and non-audit services. Our Audit
Committee has adopted a detailed policy for the pre-approval of all audit, audit related and tax services, and
permissible non-audit services provided by the independent auditors. The policy provides for an annual review of an
audit plan and budget for the upcoming annual financial statement audit, and entering into an engagement letter with
the independent auditors covering the scope of the audit and the fees to be paid. The Audit Committee may also from
time-to-time review and approve in advance other specific audit, audit related, tax or permissible non-audit services.
In addition, the Audit Committee may from time-to-time give pre-approval for audit services, audit related services,
tax services or other non-audit services by setting forth such pre-approved services on a schedule containing a
description of, budget for, and time period for such pre-approved services. The policies require the Audit Committee
to be informed of each service, and the policies do not include any delegation of the Audit Committee's
responsibilities to management. The Audit Committee may delegate pre-approval authority to one or more of its
members. The member to whom such authority is delegated will report any pre-approval decisions to the Audit
Committee at its next scheduled meeting.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

NUTRACEA

Date: March 31, 2006 By: /s/ Bradley Edson
Bradley Edson
Chief Executive
Officer

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Bradley Edson

Bradley Edson Director and Chief Executive March 31, 2006
Officer

/s/ Patricia McPeak

Patricia McPeak Director March 31, 2006

/s/ Eliot Drell

Eliot Drell Director March 31, 2006

/s/ David Bensol

David Bensol Director March 31, 2006

/s/ Steven W. Saunders
Steven W. Saunders Director March 31, 2006

/s/ James C. Lintzenich
James C. Lintzenich Director March 31, 2006

/s/ Edward L. McMillan

Edward L. McMillan Director March 31, 2006
/s/ Margie Adelman
Margie Adelman Secretary March 31, 2006

/s/ Todd C. Crow

Todd C. Crow Chief Financial Officer March 31, 2006
(Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)
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